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The Company Name

Business Type

Headquarter Location

Company Registration Number
Homepage

Telephone Number

Fax Number

Registered Capital

Paid-up Capital

Type of Stock

Paid-up Common Stock

Par value

General Information

Cishi Group Public Company Limited

Japanese restaurants, Bakery Shop and Green Tea under thebrands, "Qishi",

RTD Drink under the brand, "Amino Plus", and RTD coffee under the brand "Coffio".

20th Fl, 8 UM Tower Ramkamhang road,

Suan Luang, Bangkok 10250

0107547000150

www.oishigroup.com

0-2717-2244
0-2717-3920
375,000,000 Baht
375,000,000 Baht
Common Stock
187,500,000 shares

2 baht per par

Cishi is holding at least 10% share of the following companies :

As of December 31, 2010 :

Investment Investment Registered Paid-up
Company name Budness Topes Amount Ratio Capital Capital
{Million Baht} {96} {Million Baht} [{Million Baht)
Cishi Trading Co., Ltd. Production of
beverage and foods 41999 99.99 420 420
Cishi Ramen Co., Lid. Japanese
Ramen Restaurant 157.99 99.95 158 158
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oA Message from the Chairman

SROUE I

2010 was the turbulent year for Thai economy, society and politic. The political demonstration resulted in riot and

damages of public properties. The country's reputation was severely affected. On the other hand the unprecedented

flood in the major parts of Thailand also caused great economic losses.

Nevertheless, | am pleased to inform the shareholders that, despite all the afore-mentioned problems, i.e., even though

some of our restaurants were not accessible during the riot and the consumers have tightened their belts, the company

has managed successfully to grow sales revenue for another year.

Here are some of our impressive statistics:

1.

We have grown both sales revenue and net profit for the four consecutive years. The total revenues were 9,220
million Baht, an increase of 2,063 million Baht {28.8%]}, and net profits were 1,009 million Baht, a rise of 258 million
Baht {34.4%}. Such a repeat success was due to the increasing popularity of our beverage and food products, as
a consequence of the introduction of new products and the effective advertising and promotions. It's nice problem
that we were facing a temporary shortage of beverage production capacity.

The company led the RTD green tea market for seven consecutive years.

Cishi share price also grew continuously for the fourth year, in particular in 2010 by 150%.

We have constantly invested in the beverage business, i.e., the Cold Aseptic Filling Line {PET bottle} which will

commence the commercial run in February 2011 and UHT Box Filling Line which will be operational in the third quarter of

2011. We have also opened 21 new stores in 2010 and planned for some more in 2011 at a higher growth rate.

The above successes were attributable to :

1.
2.
.8
4.

Cur consumers have been staunchly supported the brands.

Beverage products have wide distribution network while our restaurants are located nationwide.

Cur media and promotion activities are diverse and greatly received by the consumers.

The supports from our business partners are tremendous, including our distributors, wholesalers, retailer and

the suppliers.

Cur staff is highly competent which resulted to high speed to market.

We got the full supports from our parent company, Thai Beverage PLC, in every aspect, i.e., financial, production,

marketing and human resources, etc.

Annual Report 2010
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It's normal course of business that some of our executives have left, Thai Beverage PCL has sent their capable staff to
replace to enhance the team work. There are no disruption and the shareholders can be assured that your company are

in the good hands.

The Board of Directors have agreed in common that, to achieve sustainable growth, apart from having good products and
services, the Company shall have a clear policy of ethical business operations. We shall make sure that all parties
concerned, whether they are directors or executives or staff, should strictly adhere to business ethics. Cishi Group has

already adopted the same Business Ethics as stipulated by Thai Beverage PCL.

As the Chairman of the Board, | would assure the shareholders that the Board of Directors and the management team will
determine to bring prosperity to both beverage and food businesses. We will grow revenue and profit continuously in line
with the company's policy ; ethical business practice, tfransparent management, sustainable growth, high standard of

production, sound financial status and on-going dividend payment.

Narong Srisa-arn

Chairman

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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GROUP &
Summary of financial status and company's performance at year end, December 31 Currency : Baht'000
ltems Consolidate {Baht'1000}
2010 2009 2008

Total asset 4777579 3471,798 3,246,174
Total Debt 2,101,226 1137427 886,883
Equity 2,676,353 2,334,371 2,358,291
Sales Revenue 9,186914 7127571 5952473
Gross revenue 9,220,285 7,156,881 5,886,202
Net Profit 1,009,482 751,330 592,468

Summary of Financial Ratios

ltems Consolidate {Baht'1000}
2010 2009 2008
Net Profit/Gross Revenue {%} 10.99% 10.54% 9.95%
Return/ Equity {%} 40.29% 32.01% 26.33%
Rate of Return {%)} 24.47% 22.37% 19.33%
Net Profit/Share {baht)* 5.38 40 3.16
Dividend / Share {baht) 3.20 3.20 3.00

Remark : *Net profit per share calculated from par value at 2 baht for the comparison. As of the year end of 2010

Annual Report 2010



Executive Summary OlsHI ¢

In 2010, the company had total revenue of 5,127 millien baht, a 33.9% increase from the previcus year. The
revenue boost was the result of the company's intensive promoticnal campaign, particularly the "Pal Tae Tua,
Tour Yok Gang with Qishi Part 3", as well as the launch of new drink flaver. In 2010, the net profit from

beverage business was 772 million baht, a 40.1% increase from the previous year.

The total revenue of the restaurant business was at 4,093 million baht, an increase from the year before by
24.1%. The growth in restaurant business was the result of the same stores sales as well as the launch of
new branches, and the launch of packedfood preducts. During the past year, the company has opened 21
new outlets, and closed five cutlets with slow sales velume. Currently, the company has a total of 125 outlets

(including the franchises), all of them generated 237 million baht in net profit, a 18.5%increase from the same

pericd last year.

The company has a tetal sales revenue of 9,220 million baht, where 1,009 million baht is its net prefit, a

34.4% increase from the previous year.

Qishi Group Public Company Limited



Management Team

Mr. Narong Srisa-arn
Chairman of Board of Directors, and

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Education
Master of Arts (Economics) Honorary Degree,

Thammasat University

Mr. Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi
Vice Chairman of Board of Directors, Chairman of Executive

Committee, member of Nomination Committee

and member of Remuneration Committee

Education
Master Degree in MBA, Banking & Financial, Economic,

Boston University, USA

Bachelor of Business Administration (Finance),
Boston University, USA

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana
Independent Director, Chairman of Audit Committee, Chairman of

Nomination Committee, and member of Remuneration Committee

Education
Honorary Degree in Humanities from

Schiller International University

Ph.D. (History), Michigan State University, USA

M.A. (History), Michigan State University, USA

B.A. (History), Chulalongkorn University, Bangkok
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Ms. Potjanee Thanavaranit
Independent Director and member of Audit Committee

Education

Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Chulalengkern University

Master of Business Administration (M.B.A),
Syracuse university US.A

Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn
Independent Director, member of Audit Committee,

and Chairman of Risks Management Committee

Education

Master Degree in Acccunting, Thammasat University

Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Chulalengkern University

Mr. Prasit Kovilaikool
Independent Director, member of Nomination Committee

and member of Remuneration Committee

Education
LL.M., Columbia University, New York, U.S.A.

LL.B (2nd Class Heonour) Chulalongkorn University

- -Oishi Group Public Company Limited




OISHI * Manugement Team
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Mr. Matthew Kichodhan

President, Director and member of Executive Committee

Education
Master's Degree in Science Management, Imperial College,

University of London, England

Bachelor's Degree in Commerce, University of Toronte,
Canada

Mr. Yeuh-Chin Chiu

Directer and Factory Advisor

Education
Bachelor Degree in Mass Communication (Printed media),

Sue Ching University

Mr. Sithichai Chaikriengkrai
Director, Vice Chairman of Executive Committee

and member of Remuneration Committee

Education
Minl MBA, Kasetsart University

Bachelor Degree in Accounting (First Honor),
Thammasat University
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Mr. Ueychai Tantha-obhas

Director and Vice Chairman of Executive Committee

Education

Master Degree in MBA, Thammasat University

B. Sc Accounting, St. Louis University, Misscuri, USA

Mr. Pisanu Vichiensanth
Director, member of Executive Committee and member
of Risks Management Committee

Education
Ph.D.Engnieering Techcal University Berlin,
West Germany

Master Brewer, The Scandinavian School
of Brewing, Denmark

Mr. Panot Sirivadhanabhakdi

Director

Education
Master of Science in Analysis, Design and Management of
Information System / the Lendon Scheol of Economics and

Pclitical Science, England

Industrial Engineering and Economics / Massachusetts
University, USA

Bachelor of Science in Manufacturing Engineering-/-Besten
University, USA
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Management Team

Ms. Sureeporn Pradittasnee

Member of Executive Committee

Education
Mini MBA - Thammasat University

Bachelor of Accounting - University of the Thai Chamber

of Commerce

Mr. Paiboon Kujareevanich
Company Secretary, Executive Vice President, member of
Executive Committee and member of Risks Management

Committee

Education

Master Degree in MBA, Thammasat University

Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Chulalengkern University

Mr. Paisarn Aowsathaporn
Executive Vice President, member of Executive Committee

and member of Risks Management Committee

Education

Master Degree Depaul University, Chicage, lllincis, U.SA.

Bachelor Degree, Western Michigan University,
Kalamazoo, Michigan U.SA.
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Mr. Aniruth Mahathorn
Vice President, member of Executive Committee,
and member of Risks Management Committee

Education

Master Degree Depaul University, Chicagoe, llincis, U.S.A.

Bachelor Degree, Western Michigan University,
Kalamazoo, Michigan U.S.A

Mr. Sanya Yossanant
Human Rescurce Director and member of
Risks Management Committee

Education
Master of Arts (M.A) Major : Political Science
Ramkhamhaeng University

Bachelor of Arts (B.A.) Major : Economics,
Ramkhamhaeng University

Mr. Sa-nguan Pongswan

Internal Audit Director

Education
Executive MBA, Sasin Graduate Institute of Business

Administration of Chulalengkern University
Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Thammasat University

Bachelor Degree in Law, Thammasat University
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Business Nature

1. Business Nature

1.1 History and significant development

The history and significant development are set forth below :

i1 1999

- Started Japanese restaurant operation under the brand "Qishi" at Sukhumvit 55 {Soi Thonglor}

2001

- Started Japanese noodle restaurant operation Qishi Ramen
- "In&Qut The Bakery Caf?", the healthy bakery brand entered the market.

2002

- Started Japanese buffet shabu/kaiten style under the brand "Shabushi"
- "Qishi Sushi Bar" was firstly opened.

- "Log Home" the dining complex started

2003

- Operated new central kitchen at Nawanakorn factory producing food and beverage products to support the
selling of Gishi restaurants

- "Qishi Green Tea" was launched
- "OK Suki and BBQ" was opened

2004

- Qishi Group went public on March 3, 2004
- Started trading in SET under the name "QISHI" on August 25, 2004

- "Qishi Grand" has been opened at Siam DCiscovery with modern Japanese buffet style and luxurious image

2005

- Produced and distributed fruit juice under the name "Amino CK"

2006

- Amata Nakorn plant started its operation in June 2006

- New orange drink under the brand, "Seiki Super Crange" was introduced to the market in November 2006.

2007

- Seiki Pomegranate was launched

- Qishi Black Tea was launched

2008

- March 2008, Qishi launched a new RTD product namely, "Coffio".

- Maido Cokini Shokudo, a Japanses franchise restaurant was launched.

2009

- Kazokutei, the Udon and Soba franchise restaurant from Osaka was launched on November 27, 2009
- Matcha Green Tea flavor was launched in August.

- Amino OK was rebranded as Amino Plus

2010

- New Green Tea flavors were launched, i.e, Goji Berry and Matcha Mineral Genmai

- Additional lands were acquired, now the company got 61 rais

- Mr. Tan Passakornnatee resigned from the position of President

- The company got two additional BO!I priveleges, one for the Cold Aseptic Filling project and another for the
UHT project.

Annual Report 2010
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Oishi Group Structure

OISHI GROUP PLC.
Paid-up Capital: 375 million baht

Restaurant and Bakery

* Japanese Restaurant, Buffet / A la cart
¢ Bakery for good health
* Catering and Delivery

* Franchise Business

89.89% 89.89%
Qishi Ramen Ca., Ltd Oishi Trading Co.Ltd
Paid-up Capital: 158 millicn baht Paid-up Capital: 420 millicn baht
* Japanese noodle restaurants * Central Kitchen

» Franchise business

» Green Tea manufacturer and distributor
» AMING OK manufacturer and distributor”
¢ Seiki Super Crange manufacturer

and distributor

1.2 Overall business operations

Business operations consist of two categoreis

1.21 12 Japanese restaurant brands

1.21.1

1.21.2

1.21.3

1.21.4

1.21.5

Oishi Buffet {1 store)
The first ever Japanese food buffet in Thailand with the concept of "All you can eat"

Oishi Express {15 stores)
Same pattern with Qishi buffet with a limited time of 1 hour and 45 minute at the price per head
of Baht 422

Shabushi {41 stores)
Shabu buffet style with the ingredients come along the conveyor {kaiten} together with assorted
sushi. Price per head is Baht 280 with a limited time of 1 hour and 15 minutes.

Oishi Grand (1 stores)
A distinctive and luxurious buffet atmosphere

Oishi Ramen {32 stores)

A unique style of ramen and soup localize to suit local taste, offering both Japanese and spicy
Thai menus.

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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1.2.1.86 Oishi Delivery (8 Stores)
Home delivery service {call number 02-712-3456} during 10am-8pm to serve the convenient life
style.

1.21.7 Maido Ookini Shokudo {3 Stores)
Japanese home cooking style

1.2.1.8 Kazokutei {5 stores]
Specialized in Japanese udon and soba.

1.2.1.8 Oishi Sushi Bar {9 stores)
Assorted sushi distributed in the kiosk.

1.2.1.10 Log Home Dining Complex {1 store)
4 outlets are available, namely, The Tepp serving tepanyaki, Grill & More serving buffet charcoal

grill BBQ, Shabushi and Log Cakin

1.2.1.11 In&Out {8 Stores)
Bakery outlets

1.21.12 OK Suki {1 Store)
1.2.1.13 (Catering)

As at 31 December 2010, there were 125 stores nationwide {including 2 franchise stores in Phuket}

Annual Report 2010



1.2.2 Beverage

The company produced and distributed the following beverage products

N
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Beverage Flavors

Bottle

Box

500 ml

470 mi

230 mi

350 mi

830 ml

1000 ml

250 ml

180 ml

Green Tea Honey Lemon

X

Japanese Rice

X

Original

X

Strawberry

Lermon Black Tea

PO [ [

Sugar Fres

Apple Kiwi

Mixed Berry

E Ol I B 4

Slim CG 300

<

Cherlophyll

Goji Berry

Matcha Mineral Tea

Matcha Milk Tea

Amine Plus Shot

Brightenn

Burrn

=

=

Charges

Coffio Latte

Mocha

=

Exprasso

1.3 Income stream

Income by

business type

Operated by

%

Share of the

company

Consclidated Financials

2010

2009

2008

Million
Baht

%

Million
Baht

%

Million
Baht

%

1. Restaurant and Bakery

The cempany and

Cishi Ramen

99.99%

5127

56 %

3,830

54%

3,317

126%

2. Beverage

The company and
Qishi Trading

99.99%

4,039

44%4

3,298

46%

2,636

100%

Grand

Total

9,220

100%

7128

100%

5,953

100%

1.4 Business objectives

The company aim to open 27 new siores in particular the high value brand like Shabushi to cover all key trade zone

in Bangkok and upcountry

The company will also maintain the market leader in RTD green tea and will also expand consumption base for both
domestic and abroad. We are launching new product varianis so as to sustain the income growth.

We are planning to expand oversea market via International Beverage Holding Limited. The current export markets
are Loa, Cambodia, Myanmar, Malaysia, Vietnam, Brunei, Czech Republic, Iran, Russia, Isarel;Australia, New Zealand,
Switzerland, Denmark, Barbedos, Hungary and Netherland.

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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2.

Risk Factors

21 The risk in new product development

22

23

24

25

28

Although it is common practice that all new products must pass the various processes of quality tests during the
productions, there is also the process of packaging design, tasting, advertising and promotions, the processes have
cost a big amount of money. Over the past year, some of the products were not able to penetrate the market
because they were not popular among the consumers. In addition, there has been fierce competition in beverage
market. The company has increased more intensive preparation of new product launching, in terms of quality control

and the focus on the consumer's demand, in order to ensure the company's success rate.

Location for outlet expansion and current location retention

Since location is the key factor for a successful restaurant business, competition for area possession is currently
radical. This is deemed a limitation for those who aim to increase the new outlet in department store or a specific
community. Normally, short-term location rental contract lasts for 3 years plus another 3 years, there is a high risk

that some of the company's rental contracts could not be renewed, or the rental might be increased.

Raw materials and products obsolescence

Cne of the key factors for food business is good quality and freshness of raw materials and products. For the
company, over 50% of raw materials and products are meat product, seafood, vegetable, fruit and bread, which have
short life. With this reason, effective raw material management greatly affects production cost and therefore the
company competitiveness. To reduce waste of expired raw materials and to preserve quality and freshness, the
company has purchase and inventory policy to make a purchase on daily basis. The materials are restored in

temperature-controlled rooms. In addition, First-In-First-Out {FIFQ} inventory control scheme is put in used.

The limitation of raw material

The company's commitment to produce only quality products has restricted us to buy raw materials from few
suppliers. Some materials are even limited to only one supplier. Such limitation can either cost us scarcity in raw
materials or reduce our power in price negotiation. At this moment, the company's Products Research Department

and Purchasing Department are looking for more quality suppliers.

Fluctuation in raw material costs

Factors such as the rise of fuel cost, the use of plants as alternative energy, the drastic demand for raw
materials from China has caused the rise production cost i.e. fuel, transportation, paper fiber, flour, dairy products,
vegetable oil and petroleum packaging. The company therefore, has secured medium to long term contact with the

suppliers to avoid possible difficulties.

Competition risks

The competitions of the food and beverage businesses are quite intense. There have been a high potential
entrants who launched green tea and functional drinks. New Japanese restaurant operators also emerged constantly
due the high popularity of this type of food, there are certain compstitors who open their stores with the same
offering and at nearby locations. However the company have policy not to cut pricing but enhance the product
images by means of advertising and promotion. Nevertheless, we believe the competition is good for this industry

since it will grow the market.

Annual Report 2010
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3. Business Operation

3.1 Business operation strategies

Cishi Group has valued the essentials of four business strategies in order to successfully operate Japanese food

restaurant and green tea businesses, which are;

3141

314

Strengthen the brand by offering high quality healthy products.

Ever since its establishment, the company has one clear principle to align business operation that offers
high quality Japanese food restaurants under the umbrella brand "Qishi". |t has made the brand well
receptive among consumers. At present, Qishi is widely accepted and extremely popular among health

CONSCIOUS CONSUMers.

Customer analysis and continuous marketing activities

Cishi's main target customers have covered modern and health conscious people from all age and gendar.
They crave for healthy food and beverages, where Japanese food and green tea can respond to their
needs. In the past, the company has continuously conducted intensive marketing activities to reach this
group of customers through TV, radio, and print media. However, the company has also focused on the
online and other alternative media during the past year, as well as giving the significance to customer

relations that allow the company to continue to improve the quality of its products and services.

Effective cost management

The company realizes the importance of raw material cost management and bargaining power with
distributor. This is to maintain cost and company performance. Effective cost management of the company
arises from Central kitchen, which is the production and distribution center creating economy of scale and
bargaining power with raw material vendors.

Strategy to utilize the benefit of wide coverage distribution channels
The company has been dealing business with experienced distributors and is equipped with strong
in-house marketing team; it ensures high accessibility of the company's products to its consumers.

3.2 Marketing Strategies for Restaurant and Health Bakery Businesses

3.241

322

Quality And Value For Money Of Product And Service

The company has a policy that focuses on quality of food. Therefore, the company has regarded the
thoughtfulness during the production process seriously, from using the Reverse Osmosis filtration to the
selection of quality fresh tea leaves and the use of fructose syrup in the beverage, as well as the launch of
Amino Plus that respond to the demand of modern consumers, who are health-conscious and in need of
the refreshing feeling of the drink; while the Coffio drink is made from carefully selected coffee beans.

Variety of Products and Services

Cishi groups have 5 target groups as following;

{1}  Qishi Japanese Buffet Restaurant and Log Home Dining Complex focus on middle-te.upper income group.
{2}  Shabushi, Oishi Express and OK Suki and BBQ focus on middle-income group.

{3} 0Qishi Ramen focuses on teenagers and those who require fast service.

{4} IN&OUT the Bakery Cafe focuses on middle-income group who care about health.

{6} Oishi Sushi Bar focuses on middle-income group who cares convenience.

Oishi Group Public Company Limited
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3.3 Marketing Strategies for the beverage business

3.3.1

33.2

333

334

3.3.5

The Quality of products and services

Quality is the focus of the company's policy. Green tea production process is highlighted for its
production quality from hygienic water via reverse osmosis process {RQ}, tea leaf refinement, the use of
fructose syrup instead of normal sugar until hygienic and standardized production process without
preservatives and artificial coloring; while Amino Plus is launched to be in line with the modern
consumers, who are health conscious and are in need of the refreshing feeling. In addition, the company
has launched Coffio, the premium coffee beverage is made from carefully selected coffee beans.

Variety of Products

Variety becomes another focus as it encourages consumer demand and consumption consistency. The
company launches 3 flavors of green tea under different package with unique style to suit consumers'
need. Besides, the company has packaging adjustment and new flavor launch. Last year, the company
launched the new premium "Matcha" green tea that use the best quality of green tea commonly used in

the Japanese sacred tea ceremony, which are Cishi Match Mineral Tea, and Qishi Matcha Milk Tea.

Pricing strategy to expand the customer base

The company has two different prices of RTD green tea with the plan for customer base expansion. PET
is set at 20 baht per bottle and 25 baht per bottle for CG 300 for housewives and working people, while
UHT packages are priced at 35 baht and 10 baht per carton, targeting at teenagers and students. For
Amino Plus and Coffio, the PET bottle is sold at 20 baht.

Distribution channel strategy

In order to spread wider into the target market, Cishi Group has managed product distribution through
several channels, 1) through major distributor distribute to retailers. During quarter 4/2008, the company
has appointed Thai Beverage Public Company Limited as replacement of Disthelm Co., Lid in a five-year
contract for distribution of Qishi's products through modem trade and wholesalers and retailers. In
addition, Qishi Group has appointed Sermsuk Plc. for distributing to food outlets and grocery stores
across the country since 2004. Sermsuk Plc. now operates 2,000 distributing trucks that could access
approximately 28,000 shops every 3 days, 2) through Qishi Group of restaurants to reach Qishi customers,

3) through appointed dealer to access to retail shops, and. 4} through exporting

Sale Promotion and advertising media

The company has consistently been advertised in diverse media i.e. TV, radio, newspaper, and magazines.
The company also focuses on new media such as online advertising, so that the company's
communications would be more seffective. The advertisement has complimented well with the company's
coniinuous promotional activities throughout the year, as well as the "Pai Tas Tour, Tour Yok Gang"
campaign, which has been widely received by the consumers and company's partners. The company also
held many activities to give back to the socisty and the consumers i.e. the participation in festive booth at

any community event; while "Pai Tae Tour, Tour Yok Gang" is aimed to boost the tourism.
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3.4 Industry and competitive situation

3.4.1

3.4.2

Market Condition of Japanese Food

Japanese food market has grown dramatically. According to a research in 2007, there are 660 Japanese
restaurants in Thailand; placing the country at the fifth biggest foreign market for Japanese restaurant
business. {The top four are the U.S., China, Taiwan and South Korea}. The research also found that
Japanese food is the most popular foreign dish among Bangkokians {Qther popular cuisines are Chinese,
American, Vietlnamese and [talian.} This rising trend has resulted the import of Japanese franchises that
causes fierce competition. The company has therefore, bought a Japanese franchise called Maido Qokini
Shokudo.

Market Condition of Tea beverage

In 2009, the growth of RTD green tea market has dramatically increased from the year 2008. Cishi has the
continuous boost of market shares throughout the year 2009 despite the consumers have the choice to
drink other beverages i.e. healthy alternative drink, fruit juices, cereal drink, and milk etc.

Several competitors has have concentrated on launching new and improved products, as well as compete
with pricing strategy. However, the company is confident that it will be able to maintain at least 64% of the
market share since the company has solid branding and effective marketing strategies.

3.5 BOI Investment Promotion Privilege

3.51

On July 30, 2003 Qishi Trading Co.,Ltd. has been granted BOI Investment Promotion Privilege for manufacturing
fruit and vegetable juices in sealed packaging, which details as follow; BOI Investment Promotion
Privilege no. 1475{2)/2546 for manufacturing sealed fruit and vegetable juices under the activity code
1.11: Manufacture or preservation of food or food ingredients, using modern technology.

Summary of BO| Privileges

¢ Highly skilled expatriate are allowed to work in the country with BOI board's designated amount and
period of time. However, they are specified to do the task as the committee agreement.

» Import tariff exemption for machinery according to the committee agreement.

s Tax exemption for corporate net profit from the operation from BOQI| privilege must not exceed 100% of
total investment excluding land and working capital. This is allowed for 8 years from the first day with
income flow from the business. For the case that the company loses from operation, income tax
exemption will be granted by deducting from net profit gained after exemption allowance period, which
must not exceed 5 years since the day the allowance period ends. The company can choose to deduct
the net profit of a year or allocate to many years.

¢ Exemption for dividend tax during eight years of allowance

e Allow to transfer the money in and out of the country in foreign currency.

Crucial conditions are summarized as following;

+ Speed up fraining or supporting Thais to operate in place of foreign technicians or experts within
designated period.

+ Machinery getting BOI privilege must be new machinery {First handj}.

+ Has production capacity of sealed botlle of fruit and vegetable juice at 238.2 million liters
{16 hrs/day: 300 days per year).

+ The person with Thai nationality must own at least 51% of total registered share.

+ Has to operate to get 1ISO 9000 within two years.

+ The factory must be constructed within Navanakorn industrial estate in Pathumthani

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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3.5.2 On December 8, 2005, Qishi Trading received acceptance letter from BOI for additional investment promotion for

3.5.3

fruit and vegetable juice production in sealed bottle for the new factory operated in Amatanakorn

industrial estate.

Crucial privileges are summarized as following;

llow to import foreign technician to the country according to the designated number and period.
However they have to work in specified tasks as the committee agreement.

Tariff exemption for machinery according the committee agreement.

Corporate income tax exemption is allowed for 8 years since the first day with income flow from
business. The company is allowed to deduct the losses after the year of allowance. And it is allowed to
choose to deduct for only one year or many years after the allowance period ends.

Exemption for dividend tax during eight years of allowance.

Important conditions are summarized as follow;

Speed up training or supporting Thais to operate in place of foreign technicians or experts within
designated period.

Machinery getting BO| privilege must be new machinery

Has production capacity of sealed botlle of fruit and vegetable juice at 144 million liter

{20 hrs/day: 300 days per year).

The person with Thai nationality must own at least 51% of total registered share.

Has to operate to get ISO 9000 within two years.

The factory must be constructed within Amartanakorn industrial zone in Chonburi.

Curing the first three years, at least one percent of employees must hold bachelor degree or higher

in scientific filed or related field of research and development or design.

On February 25, 2010, Oishi Trading received acceptance letter from BOI for additional investment

promotion for fruit and vegetable juice production in sealed bottle for the new factory operated in

Navanakorn industrial Zone, Pathum Thani province.

Crucial privileges are summarized as following;

Allow to recruit foreign technician to the country according to the designated number and period.
However they have to work in specified tasks as the committee agreement.

Tariff exemption for machinery according the committee agreement.

Corporate income tax exemption is allowed for 8 years since the first day with income flow from
business. In the case that there is some loss during the exemption period, it is allowed to choose 1o
deduct for only one year or many years after the allowance period ends within the limitation of five year
period.

Exemption for dividend tax during eight years of allowance.
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Important conditions are summarized as follow ;

peed up training or supporting Thais to operate in place of foreign technicians or experts within
designated period.

Machinery getting BOI privilege must be new machinery.

Has production capacity of sealed bottle of fruit and vegetable juice at 108 million lite

{16 hrs/day: 300 days per year).

The person with Thai nationality must own at least 51% of total registered share.

Has to operate to get ISQ 9000, or ISO 14000, or equivalent within two years.

The factory must be constructed within the premises of Navanakorn Industrial Estate

in Pathum Thani province.

3.5.4 On September 7, 2010, Oishi Trading received acceptance letter from BOI for additional investment

promotion for fruit and vegetable juice production in sealed bottle for the new factory operated in

Navanakorn industrial Zone, Pathum Thani province.

Crucial privileges are summarized as following ;

Allow to recruit foreign technician to the country according to the designated number and period.
However they have to work in specified tasks as the committee agreement.

Tariff exemption for machinery according the committee agreement.

Corporate income tax exemption is allowed for 8 years since the first day with income flow from
business. In the case that there is some loss during the exemption period, it is allowed to choose 1o
deduct for only one year or many years after the allowance period ends within the limitation of five year
period.

Exemption for dividend tax during eight years of allowance.

Important conditions are summarized as follow;

Speed up training or supporting Thais to operate in place of foreign technicians or experts within
designated period.

Machinery getting BOI privilege must be new machinery.

Has production capacity of sealed bottle of fruit and vegetable juice at 150 million liter

{20 hrs/day: 300 days per year).

The person with Thai nationality must own at least 51% of total registered share.

Has to operate to get ISQ 9000, or ISO 14000, or equivalent within two years.

The factory must be constructed within the premises of Navanakorn Industrial Estate in Pathum Thani province.

3.6 Product and Service Procurement

Cishi Trading Co.Ltd is considered as the center for the Qishi group in sourcing and distributing raw materials. It is

also responsible for storing raw material, as well as processing the materials, of which quality and standard must be

preserved, and and deliver to various outlets. Also, the central kitchen produces the company's bakery and sushi, as

well as all the beverages, in order to deliver to all the restaurants in the group

3.7 Business Limitation

-None-

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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4. Business Asset

Business operation asset has book value as of December 31, 2010 as following;

4.1 Land and land improvements

Cishi group has land and land improvements for business operation at the book value as of December 31, 2010 as

the following details;

Land and Land improvements

Type of possession

Net book value

Collateral for Loans

{million baht)
Land with 61-2-14.60 rai with Owner 314.27 - None -
improvements at Navanakorn Industrial
Zone 2, Klong Nueng, Pathumihanee
Total 314.27

4.2 Building and Building improvement

Buildings are used for business operation with book value as of December 31, 2010 as the following;

Buildings and Building improvements

Type of possession

Net book value

Collateral for Loans

{million baht)

Green tea Plant and Central Owner 231.83 - None -
Kicthen at Navanakorn Industrial
Zone 2, Klong Luang, Pathumihanee
Green tea Plant at Amata Nakorn Leased 142.82 - None -
Industrial Estate, Bankao,
Panthong, Chonburi

Total 374.75

4.3 Rental Agreement

As of December 31, 2010, the company has rental contract for Japanese food restaurant business and healthy

bakery outlets with retailers for 116 contracts. Mostly they are short term with the period of three years and another

three years for renewal. Many contracts will be expired in 2012-2013
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4.4 Leasehold Rights
Majority of location for Qishi business are under the contract of 3 years with another 3 years for renewal. This is to

lower risk of engagement and fluctuation from economic change. Cnly some outlets have long term agreement for

location in department stores. Net book value as of December 31, 2010 is as following;

Rental Net book val
Area/Location =i 5t ROGRAEEy Collateral for Loans
period/Expiration {million baht)
1st floor, Seacon Square, 21 years and 9 months/ 16.03 - None -
No. 1053-1054 in 292.58 sq.m. area Expire 2024
The Mall Ngamwongwan. 17 years and 9 months/ 7.45 - None -
GFC1A in 220 sq.m.area and Expire 2019
GFC1B in 101sq.m. area
The Mall Bangkapi 20 years and 8 months/ 2267 - None -
in GF-F5A 300 sqg.m.area and Expire 2022
GF-5B in 52 sq.m area
Ceniral Plaza, Pinklaow, 13 years and 5 months/ 528 - None -
G45 in 160.15 sq.m area Expire 2022
MBK, 7 years/ 5.20 - None -
1A 08-09 in 97.64 sq.m area Expire 2013
Future Park, 15 years and 6 months/ 8.64 - None -
Rangsit, B56 in 134 sq.m area Expire 2021
Esplanade,Ratchada, 24 years and 2 months/ 26.73 - None -
B41 in 288 sq.m area Expire 2031
Total 92.00

4.5 Tools and Machinery for Manufacturing

As of December 31, 2010, tools and machinery for manufacturing is as following;

Type of machinery hietbodictalue Collateral for Loans
{million baht)
Machinery-Beverage 238.28 - None -
Machinery-Food 203.54 - None -
Total 441.82

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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4.6 Decoration and internal systems

As of December 31, 2010, decoration and internal systems for business operation is as following;

Type HiStikonk-Ralee Collateral for Loans
{million)
Decoration 161.82 - None -
Internal systems 295.27 - None -
Total 457.09

4.7 Construction in progress and installation

Construction in progress and installation as of December 31, 2010, is as following;

Type Net book value Collateral for Loans
frillion)
New Plant 1.257.65 - None -
Branches in Progress 1.29 - Nore -
Total 1,258.94

L

4.8

4.9

Other assets

Cther assets include office equipment, furniture and fixtures, restaurant utensils and vehicles. Net book value as of
December 31, 2010 is 119.21 million kaht.

Service Trademark
In March 2004, Oishi Group got approval to use service trademark for Qishi both Thai and English, together with
Oishi logo and the word "Qishi" both in Thai and English, "In & Out the Bakery Cafe" logo, and "Qishi Ramen" logo.

4.10 Trademark

The Company got approved to use trademark from the Intellectual Property Department for Qishi both
Thai and English, together with Qishi logo, the word "Gishi" both in Thai and English. The approval also covers Qji
and Ami Mascot both in Thai and English, and "Amino OK" both in Thai and English. In 2008, the Company also

got approved to use trademark for "Coffio" in English.

4.11 Investment policy for an investment in subsidiary and affiliates

As of December 31, 2010, the company has invested in 2 subsidiaries, which are Qishi Ramen Co. Lid., Japanese
noodle restaurants, and Qishi Trading Co. Ltd., manufacturing Japanese food, bakery, and RTD beverage

respeclively. The company is holding 99.99% shares of the share capital in both companies.

Legal Cases

There are no material legal cases during 2010.
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As of December 31, 2009, the company has 375 million baht of authorized capital. It can be categorized into 187.5

million common stocks, with the par value of two baht par share and 375 million baht worth of paid-up capital.

6.2 Shareholders

Major shareholders and stock holding proportion based on authorized and paid-up capital are as follow

Rl As of December 31, 2008
Shareholders
No. of Stocks Percentage
1 THAI BEVERAGE PUBLIC CO,, LTD 167,360,199 89.259
2 UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 8,692,600 4.636
3 MR. TAN PASSAKORNNATEE 6,562,500 3.500
4 THAI END VDR CO.LTD. 1,621,500 0.865
5 MR.CHIU YUEH-CHIN 1,009,800 0.539
6 CITBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD - UBS AG LONDON

BRANCH - NRBS IPB CLINT SEG 1,000,000 0.533

7 QUAM SECURITIES COMPANY LIMITED 250,000 0.133
8 STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY 83,000 0.044
9 wefinud wodwgnen 81,000 0.043
10 wng Tand duaadys 78,000 0.042
11 MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 761,301 0.406
Total 187,500,000 100

6.3 Dividend policy

The company and its subsidiaries have policy to offer dividend not lower than 40% of the net profit, after tax

deduction and legal reserve. Dividend payment does not have a considerable impact on the company's performance.

Cividend payment must be approved among shareholders and the Board of Directo

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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7.

Management Structure

7.1 Management Structure
The company's board committee structure is consisted of six sets of managerial commitiees; Board of Directors,
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee and Remuneration Committee.

7.1.1 Board of Directors
As of February 28, 2011, the 12 members of the Board of Directors are;

{1}  Mr. Narong Srisa-arn Chairman
{2}  Mr. Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi Vice Chairman
{3}  Mr. Vikrom Koompairochana IndependentDirector and

Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

{4} Ms. Pofjanee Thanavaranit Independent Director and Audit Committee
{5}  Mr. Chai Jarungtanapibkal Independent Director and Audit Committee
{6}  Mr. Prasit Kovilaikool Independent Director

{7} Mr. Matthew Kichodhan!!! Director and President

{8 Mr. Yeuh Chin Chiu Director

{9}  Mr. Sithichai  Chaikriengkrai Director

{10y Mr. Ueychai Tanta-obhas Director

{11} Mr. Pisanu Vichiensanth Director

{12} Mr. Panot Sirivadhanabhakdit? Director

Authorized Directors are as follow;
Two Directors have to sign an agreement with the company stamp except Mr. Vikrom Koompairochana,
Mr. Chai Jarungtanapibal, and Ms. Potjanee Thanavaranit
Remark .
1) Mr. Matthew Kichodhan has been appointed as director and President since September 10, 2010 to replace
Mr. Tan Passakomnatee which has resighed form the comipany's director since September 9, 2010
{2) Mr. Panot Sirivadhanabhakdi has been appointed as director since February 23, 2011 to repface

Ms. Sunisa Sukphantavorn which has resighed from the company's director since Oclober 6, 2010

Roles and Authorities of the Board of Directors

The board must use his/her knowledge to benefit the company's business by obliging to law, objectives
and obligation agreed upon shareholder conference. The board must allow internal auditing and monitoring
and effective management. Also, information transparency, responsibility towards shareholders is a must.
The board is obliged to refrain from any compstition or anything/any business related to the business that
is competing with the company. The board is allowed to appoint any person or team to be a
representative for any business conduct or operation. The following deeds would need to get approval

from shareholder conference before taking action;

1. Issues which are compulsory, by law, to have shareholder conference's approval.
2. Any deed that yields the board gain or loss or any deed that is obliged, by SET regulation, to have
Shareholders' Meeting approval. Those who potentially have conflict of interest are, 1. the company board,
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2. the major shareholders, 3. those who have the company's authority, and 4. those who have close
relationship with the persons in 1, 2, and 3 via either blood line or marriage. The persons could be
parents, married couples, son/daughter or close relatives, 5. Company of those mentioned in 1,2, and 3 or
the company that those mentioned in 1,2, and 3 holds share/stock will not have right to vote for any issue

that might initiate the conflict of interest.
The following issues would need an approval from not less than three-fourths of total votes of Board of

Cirectors and Shareholder's attending the meeting and having voting rights.

1. Buying or transferring a part or total parts of the company's business to others.
2. Making a purchase or receiving a transfer of a private company or public company.

[#]

. Making/changing/dismissing and agreement for company rental or assigning any party to
take control over the company.

. Making any adjustment in company registration document or the company regulations

. Increasing or decreasing authorized capital or issuing debentures.

. Terminating company's business.

. Merger and acquisition with other companies.

o R S T

. Any issue remarked in SET Act and SET announcement that would need to get approval from
shareholder conference e.g. buying and selling authorized capital or any interrelated business.

The board of directors requires an orientation for every new director, so that the director will acknowledge
the company's expectation regarding the role, and responsibility of the director, the policy and regulation
in company's management that shall be abide by the director; as well as create knowledge and
understanding in the business and the operation of the company. Also, the new director is required 1o visit
all the company's operating divisions for the readiness of the director.

The board of directors has the policy to enhance the directors with diverse knowledge and skills i.e. the
directors are encouraged to take part in seminars, and training courses organized by the Thai Institute of
Directors {IQD).

The Executive Committee

As of February 28, 2011, the 9 members of the executive commitiees are;

{1} Mr. Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdit™ Chairman

{2} Mr. Ueychai Tantha-obhas Vice Chairman
{3} Mr. Sithichai Chaikriengkrai Vice Chairman
{4} Dr. Pisanu Vichiensanth Director

{5} Ms. Sureeporn Pradittasnes'® Director

{6} Mr. Matthew Kichodhan®! Director

{7} Mr. Paiboon Kujaresvanich Director

{8} Mr. Paisarn Aowsathaporn Director

{9} Mr. Aniruth Mahathorn Director

Oishi Group Public Company Limited
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Remark :

1) Mr. Narong Srisaarn and Mr. Yeuh Chin Chiu have resigned from the company's director since February 24, 2011 and the
Board of Dirgctor No. 1/2011 has appointed Mr. Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi as Chairman, Mr. Ueychal Tantha-obas and
Mr. Sithichal Chalkriengkral as Vice Chairman, Ms.Suregporn  Praditiasnee, Mr. Paiboon Kujarsevanich,

Mr. Paisarn Aowsathaporn, and Mrn Anirnith Mahathom as director since February 24, 2011

{2) Ms. Sureeporn Pradittasnee has been appointed as Director since February 24, 2011 to replace Ms. Sunisa Sukphantavorn
which has resigned from the Company's Director since October 8 2010

{3) Mr. Matthew Kichodhan has been appointed as Director since October 2010 to repface Mr. Tan Passakomnatee which

has resigned from the company's Director since September 8, 2010

The Executive Committee's Roles and Authority

1. Follow the company's policy, which obliges to law and regulation, except for those issues subjected to
the consent of shareholders.

2. Hold the authority to propose instruct and set business policy and strategy to the company's board of directors.

3. Set business plan, management authority, annual business budge and annual expense budget to be
proposed to the company's board.

4. Effectively handle business administration of the company and its subsidiaries according to the
company's business policy, goals, operational plan, budget and management authority as approved by
the board of directors.

5. Handle the company's general administration that include recruiting, training, making employment, and
termination of employment. The authority however, does not include the termination of vice president
onwards.

6. Approve the company and its subsidiaries' business transaction as followed,;

6.1 Approval of credit offered by a financial institution or loan requested to a financial institution, giving
collateral or making any payment for business administration e.g. branch expansion investment
or any regular business expense.

6.2 Approval the annual budget of the subsidiaries
The authority heretofore mentioned has limited the approval of the executive board to 100 million
baht or equivalent or as approved by the board of directors. The exemption is in the case of asset
retirement, where the executive board is authorized to approve an amount fewer than 10 million
baht or the payment of entertainment expense, charity and promotional products, where the
executive board can authorize an amount fewer than three million baht. However, the limitation can
be changed if the board of directors find appropriate.

7. Hold the authority to approve the opening of deposit account with domestic financial institutes,
including the authority in payment making through the company' s deposit accounts.

8. Hold the authority to approve the budget for annual increase of salary and bonus of the employees of

the company and its subsidiaries, except the post of vice president cnwards.
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9.  Hold the authority to approve any payment as assigned by the board of directors.

10. Hold the authority to making employment, termination of employment, employment promotion, disciplinary
employment, reshuffling, adjustment of salary, bonus, welfare and other benefits of employees, whose
positions are not higher that managing directors. The executive board alse holds the authority to make
consideration regarding other meritoricus efforts of employees, except thase in position higher that the
company's president. Also, the signature authority for employment contract is designated to the managing
director or the appointed members of the executive board.

11. Hold the authority to appeint the company's representative directors and/or the administrative subcommittee in
the subsidiaries, who will be successfully carrying through the management plans as assigned by the company.

12. Supervise and make decision on the company's operation and may appoint proxies to delegate for the
executive board as appropriate. For example, the executive board can appeoint an ad hoc subcommittee o
consider the increase of salary and bonus for the employees in the level of the head of departments to the
vice presidents; the executive board can also appeint ad hoc commitiee, who are experienced in some
specific areas, to filter the works before they being presented to the executive board. The board also has
the power 1o revoke, make amend the scope of the appointed authority.

13. The executive board is bound te conduct any duty assigned by the company's board of directors.

In addition, an approval of the above authorities must not bring to the conflict of interest for or among
the Board of Girectors {as of set by SEC} and sub-companies. Since those who involve in any conflict of

interest will not have a right to vote.

The Audit Committee

The three audit commitiees are;

{1}  Mr. Vikrom Koompairochana Chairman of the Audit Committees
{2} Ms. Potjanee Thanavaranit Independent Director and Audit Committee
{3} Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn Audit Commitiee

Term for Audit Committee
The Audit Committes has the same term as other directors.
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The Audit Committee's Roles and Authority

The roles and athority of Audit Committee are;

1. Review the operation of the company, to be in-line with the Securities Law, the rules and regulations
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and other related laws.

2. Review the Internal Control and the Internal Audit of the company, so that the company carries
appropriate, sufficient and efficient Internal Control and Internal Audit systems; as well as making
approval of the appointment, transference and dismissal of the head of internal audit.

3. Review the company's financial report; as well as the sufficiency of the company's disclosure of
information in the case of conflict of interest, in order to certify that the company's financial report is
accurate, based on the standard of certified accounting.

4. In charge of the selection, and appointment of the company's certified accountant, including
considering of the accountant's fee.

5. Review any matter that might relate to the company's conflict of interest, to be in-line with the rules
and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

6. Preparing the report of the Audit Committee to be revealed on the company's Annual Report.

7. Perform other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors, with approval from the Audit Committee.

7.1.4 The Risk Management Commitiee

The seven risk management committeas are;

{13  Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn Chairman of the Risk Management Committees
{2y  Dr. Pisanu Vichiensanth Risk Management Committee

{33  Mr. Paiboon Kujareevanich Risk Management Committee

{4y  Mr. Paisarn Aowsathaporn Risk Management Committee

{5}  Mr. Aniruth Mahathorn Risk Management Committee

{6}  Mr. Thanee Pornphisutsak Risk Management Committee

{7y Mr. Sanya Yossanant Risk Management Committee

Remark :

* M Anirath Mahathorn, Vice President, Beverage Division has been appointed as Risk Management Commitiee
since October 21, 2010
* Mr Thanee Pormphisutsak, Fetory General Manager has been appointed as Risk Management Commitiee

since February 23, 2011
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The Risk Management Committee's Roles and Authority

The roles and authority of Risk Management Commitiee are;

1. Set policy and integrated risk management framework, that thoroughly cover main business risks i.e.
business and operational risks.

2. Propose to the Managing Director qualified candidates to work in each risk management team. The
team will directly report to the committee.

3. Organize operational trainings and seminars on risk management. The trainings shall be consisted of

the company's mission, operational process, risk evaluation criteria, risk factor ranking, and risk

prevention and control strategies.

Approve the appropriate risk management plans that can be applied throughout the organization.

Review the sufficiency of the existing assurance and life insurance.

Fallow up on the company's main risk factors, as well as, any risk indication while updating the current data.

Offer advises and instructions on risk management.

Communicate with the Audit Committee on main risk factors, to be in-line with the internal control.

e A

Report to the company's board of directors regarding the risk factors and risk management.

The Nomination Committee

The three Nomination Committees are;

{1}  Mr.Vikrom Koompairochana Chairman of the Nomitation Committee
{2}  Mr. Prasit Kovilaikool Nomitation Commities
{3} Mr. Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi Nomitation Commities

The Nomination Committee Roles and Authority

The roles and authority of Nomination Commitiee are;

1. Nominate the qualified persons to be company director, to be approve by the Board of Directors or
Shareholders' mesting where appropriate

2. Nominate the qualified persons to be company executives from the level of Vice President, to be
approve by the Board of Directors or Shareholders' meeting where appropriate
Determine qualifications of executives from the level of Vice President

Carry out any other recruitment jobs as assigned by the Board of Directors and Shareholders' mesting

The Remuneration Committee

The five remuneration commitiees are;

{1y Mr. Narong Srisa-arn Chairman of the Remuneration Committees
{2y Mr. Vikrom Koompairochana Remuneration Committee
{3} Mr. Prasit Kovilaikool Remuneration Committee
{4y Mr. Tan Passakornnatee Remuneration Committee
{5} Mr. Sithichai Chaikriengkrai Remuneration Committee
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The Remuneration Committee's Roles Authority

The roles of Remuneration Committee are;

1. Set up remuneration rate and other benefits of the managerial committees.The rate will be passed on
the company's boards before submitting to the sharsholders' mesting for approval.

2. Set up remuneration rate and other benefits of the company's high ranking executives from the Vice
Presidents, in order to submit to The Executive Boarder the Board of Directors for approval.

3. In charge of any operation regarding the Set up remuneration rate, assigned by the Board of Directors
or the shareholders' meeting.

The Remuneration Policies are as follows;

{1} Considering the remuneration based on the comparative rate with others in the same industry.

{2} Considering based on the company's business expansicn, the perfarmance of the company and its subsidiary
{3} Considering based on the responsibility of each party.

Company Secretary
As of May 8, 2008, the board of directors appointed Mr. Paiboon Kujareevanich to be the Company Secretary.

The Authority of the Company Secretary
1. Company Secretary is authorized to be the contact person and sign in documents related to the Stock
Exchange of Thailand.
2. Company Secretary has duty and responsibility as stated in the Securities and Exchange Act B.E.

2008, and as regulated by the Capital Market Committee.

The Management Team

As of December 31, 2010, the company has 8 managerial member, which are;

{1}  Mr. Matthew Kichodhan President

{2}  Mr. Paiboon Kujaresvanich Executive Vice President

{3} Mr. Paisarn Aowsathaporn Executive Vice President, Food Division
{4}  Mr. Aniruth Mahathorn Vice President, Beverage Division

{5}  Mr. Somsak Ussavathirakul Accounting Director

{6} Mr. Thanee Pornphisutsak Factory General Manager

{7}  Mr. Sanya Yotsanan Human Resource Director

{84 Mr. Sa-nguan Pongswan Audit Director

President Authority
The following authorities are allowed for the Managing Director

1. Follow the company board or the Board of Directors assignment, given that such authority is obliged
to the company's objectives, law and regulation.

2. Approve operating expense, sale expense, administration expense, and investment budget as of the
budget approved by the company board or the Board of Directors. However, this does not include the
authority to request any loan or offering any collateral.

3. Approve raw material, product, equipment and any other service procurement which relates to the
company's business. Nevertheless, this does not include land procurement for outlet expansion. The
managing director's authority to make any purchase does not exceed 1 million baht each.

4. Approve location search for outlet expansion and approve outlet opening and location renting for the

new outlets.
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The president does not have any authority to operation or involve in any interrelated business that might
bring to the conflict of interest or involve in selling and purchasing the company's asset or any conflicting

issues with subsidiary. Since these issues must be brought to the company board's meeting

The board of directors has set the operational goal for the company's managing director and the
management team. In addition, performance evaluation of the managing director and the management team
will be done annually. The managing director will evaluate the performance of the management team from
the director position downwards. The evaluation criteria is based on the company's annual strategies and
plan, so that the remuneration will be appropriately set, upon the approval of the board of directors and

the executive board.

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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7.2 The recruitment for Board of Directors, Independent Directors, Audit Committee and Executives

7.2.1

722

In the case that the Board of Directors, Independent Directors, Audit Commitiee and Executives reach the end

of their term, or their positions become vacant, their positions will be selected by the company board, without

recruiting commitiee since the company does not have a recruiting commitiee. However, the company has

selected those who are qualified for their compstent educational/personal background with high experience.

They must also have the qualifications required by public company limited Act 1992, Section. 68 and the

announcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC}. After passing these selection criteria, the

person will be proposed in shareholder conference according to the following procedures;

1. One sharsholder has one right to vote.

2. A shareholder must use the right to vote a person or many persons for chairman but cannot separate the
vote to a particular person.

3. The one who has the highest votes will be appointed a chairman and so on. The number of chairmen
must be equaled to the number allowed each time. In the case that there are more than one person gaining

equal vote and the number is exceeded the quota; the conference head will have a right to make a desision.

Upon the selection of the candidates for the Executives, the board of directors will follow up on the
recruitment, especially the managing director and the high-ranking executive positions, in order to be certain
that the executives will have knowledge and qualification that will be valuable to the company, and will be

able to succeed important positions in the future.
Criteria for the selection of Independent Directors and the Audit Committee

The company's independent director and audit committese must possess qualifications as follows;

1. Not holding shares in excess of one percent of the total number of voting shares of the company or its
subsidiary nor associated company, as well as shareholders or any stakeholders.

2. Not be and have been the director who involves in management role of the company, or an employee, or
an advisor of the company who receives regular salary from the company and not be and have not been
a person having controlling power over the company or the company's subsidiary, or associated company,
or a subsidiary of another company in the same level of the company, unless the independent director
has been discharged from the above position for more than two years before the appointment.

3. Not have and have not had any business relationship with the company or the company's parent
company, subsidiary, associated company, or any juridical persons in the manner in which his/her
independent discretion might be affected, and not be and have not been a substantial shareholder,
director, or executive of a person having business relationship with the company or the company's parent
company, subsidiary, associated company, or any juridical persons in the manner in which his/her
independent discretion might be affected unless the independent director has been discharged from the

above position for more than two years before the appointment.

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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4. Not making any business fransaction regarding assets, services, give/receive financial support in the
amount exceeding 20 millions baht or 3 percent of the director's net assets, unless being granted
unanimous approval from the board of directors as necessary and appropriate and must not occur
regularly. The director must also reveal the transaction in form 56-1/ annual report/ meeting invitation on
the case by case basis.

5. Not be giving professional services such as account auditing or other services i.e. advisor, including legal
or financial advisor who obtains fee more than two million baht a year unless being granted unanimous
approval from the board of direciors as necessary and appropriate and must not occur regularly. The
director must also reveal the transaction in form 56-1/ annual report/ meeting invitation on the case by
case basis.

6. Not be a person having relationship either through blood or lineage or legal registration as a father,
mother, spouse, sibling or child, including as a spouse of a child of any management person or major
shareholder of the company, or the company's subsidiary, or of any person having power to control the
company or the company's subsidiary.

7. Not be a director appointed as a representative of a director of the company, a representative of a major
shareholder of the company.

8. Not have any characteristics by which his/her independent comment or opinion on the company's
operation may be affected.

9. In the case that the independent director is assigned by the board of directors to make a decision
regarding the operation of the company, its parent company, subsidiary, associated company, a subsidiary
of another company in the same level of the company, or juridical persons in the manner in which his/her
independent discretion might be affected; the collective decision can be done, but the independent
director must not also be the audit committee.

10. The independent director is allowed to serve as non-executive director or independent director of the

company's affiliated company.
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oisii: Shareownership of the Board of Directors and Executives

SROTD

Shareownership of the Board of Directors and Executives

Ordinary Stocks {Shares)
Name Position

31 Dec 2010 31 Dec 2009 (é:::::22)
1. Mr. Narong Srisa-arn Chairman - - -
2. Mr. Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi| Vice Chairman - - e

3. Mr. Vikrom Koompairochana | Independent Director/
Chairman of the the Audit Committee - - =

4. Ms. Potjanee Thanavaranit | Independent Director/
Audit Committees - = -

5. Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn | Independent Director/
Audit Committees - = =
6. Mr. Prasit Kovilaikool Independent Director - = =
7. Mr. Matthew Kichodhan Director and Managing Director - - -
8. Mr. Yeuh Chin Chiu Director 1,008,900 1,241,500 {231,600)
8. Mr. Sithichai Chaikriengkrai| Director - - -
10. Mr. Ueychai Tanth-obas Director 2 = =
11. Dr. Pisanu Vichiensanth Director = o =
12. Mr. Paiboon Kujaresvanich | Assistant Managing Director - - -
13. Mr. Paisarn Aowsathaporn | Assistant Managing Director - - -
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Remuneration

7.3 Remuneration

7.3.1 Financial incentives
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7.3.1.1 The financial incentive of the company's board of directors are in the forms of monthly salary, and

bonus, which can be elaborated as follows;

Kigiia 2010 Total
Position Monthly Salary Bonus Amount
{baht) {baht) {baht)
1 Mr. Narong Srisa-arn 720,000 4,851,700 5571,700
Chairman / Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi 540,000 3,638,700 4,178,700
Vice Chairman
3.  Mr. Tan Passakornnates!” - 2,425,800 2,425,800
Director / Remuneration Committee
4. Ms. Sunisa Sukphantavorn® - 2,425,800 2,425,800
Director
5. Mr. Vikrom Koompairochana 600,000 3,638,700 4,238,700
Independent Director / Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee
6. Ms. Potjanee Thanavaranit 480,000 2,021,500 2,501,500
Independent Director / Audit Commities
7. Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn 600,000 3,638,700 4,238,700
Independent Director/Audit Committes/
Risk Management Committee
8. Prasit Kovilaikool 270,000 - 270,000
Independent Director
9.  Mr. Yeuh-Chin Chiu - 2425800 2425800
Director
10. Mr. Sithichai Chaikriengkrai 480,000 2425800 2,805,800
Director / Remuneration Committes
11. Mr. Ueychai Tantha-obhas 360,000 2425,800 2,785,800
Director
12. Dr. Pisanu Vichiensanth 480,000 2425800 2,805,800
Cirector/ Risk Management Committee
13. Mr. Somkiat Chareonkul®® - 2,425,800 2,425,800
Director
14. Ms. Cholakarnta Boobphaves!¥ - 2,425,800 2.425,800
Director
15. Mr. Verachai Tantikul® - 404,300 404,300
Independent Director and Audit Committies
Total Amount of Salaray and bonus 4,530,000 37,800,000 42,130,000
Ramark :
{1} Mr. Tan Passakornnatee has resigned from the company's director since September s, 201¢ and The Board of Director has
appointed Mr. Matthew Kichodhan as director and President since September 2016
{2} Ms. Sunisa Sukphantavom has resigned from the company's director since October s, 2010 and the Board.of Director has
appointed Mr. Panot Sirivadhanabhakdi as director since February 23, 2011
(3} Mr. Somkiat Charoenkul has resigned from the company's director since March 3, 2010
{4 Mr. Cholakarnta Boobphaves has resigned from the company's director since December 31, 2009
(st M. Verachal Tantikul has resigned from the company's director since February 24, 2009

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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Incentive of the company's executives in the forms of salary and bonus.

Unit : Baht No. of Executives 2010 2009
Total Amount of Salary 8 30,252,107 26,800,740
Total Amount of Bonus 8 5,432,333 9,606,940
Grand Total 35,684,440 36,407,680

7.3.2 Independent committee pariicipation in any training course organized by Thailand Institute of Directors

(10D)

Training Courses

Name of the Board of Directors
({Total: 13)

Directors Certification

Program {DCP)

Directors Accreditation

Program {DAP)

Audit Committee
Program {ACP)

Others

1. Mr. Narong Srisa-arn
2. Mr. Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi
3. MrVikrom Koompairochana

4. Ms. Potjanee Thanavaranit™

5. Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn
6 .Mr. Prasit Kovilaikool

7. Mr. Yeuh-Chin Chiu

8. Mr. Sithichai Chaikriengkrai
9. Mr. Ueychai Tantha-obhas
10.Dr. Pisanu Vichiensanth

11. Mr. Matthew Kichodhan

Class of 17/20083

Class of 29/2003
Class of 16/2004

Class of 26/2003
Class of TCC/2004

Class of TCC/2004

Class of TCG/2004
Class of TCG/2004
Class of 83/2007

Class32/2010

Class of 4/2005

RCP Class 13/2008
RCC Class 4/2007,
CMA Class 8,TEP

CoT Class3/2007

7.3.3 Other Benifits

-None-

7.4 Business Operation

The Board of Directors sees the significance of the management and operation, based on honesty and transparency. The

company has been strictly operating under the Cede of Best Practices, regulated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand

{SET). Moreover, the company's board of directors has set policies on corperate governance to be in-line with the SET's

regulations, so that the company's operation wll be transparent, as well as boosting the confidence of the sharehclders,

investors and other related parties. The company determines tc improve the company's good governance to be leveled

with other leading companies. The policies will then push the company forward to success and sustainable growth.
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Internal Information Usage

7.5 Internal Information Usage
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7.51 It is remarked that the Beoard of Directors and Management shall not bring any unpublicized internal

information in use for personal benefit like stock trading They are obliged 1o one-month silent period.

7.5.2 The Board of Directors and Management has been informed about the shareholding regulations either of

oneself or of family required by SEC No. 59 and 275 punishment regulation as of SEC Act in 1992,

The company's punishment for those who misconduct internal information ranges from verbal warning

up to terminating employment.

7.6 Human Resources

As of December 31, 2010, the company and subsidiaries have a total of 5,600 employees {Excluding the Board of
Directors and Management Team as 13), categorized into;

Line of Command Number of employees
Office 237
Restaurant 4,778
Factory 585
Total 5,600

In 2010, the total basic salary was ss0 million baht.

Employee development policy

Qishi Group sees significance in the development of knowledge and capability of the employees. The company

believes that every employee is a part of the company's success; therefore, personnel development is considered a

long-term investment that must be done continuously. If the human resources are considered the most important

element of an organization, the necessity of human rescurces development, in order 1o creaie applied ability and

knowledge to their the employees' works, is also considered a success building factor that can make the company

achieve its sustainable growth.

In 2008, the company still maintained the human resources development plan as in the year 2007. The employees

were divided into three groups i.e. restaurant employees, manufacturing employees, and supporting employees. The

detail is elaborated as follows;

1. Restaurant employees :

The company sets many restaurant operation training system courses 1o execulive employees including special

training for each different level. This will cause the standard services of the company reguirements as two

following categories;

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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1.1 Crew Member Training Excellence: is the training course for the front line staff such as cleaning staff, cashier,
receptionist, and for the back office staff such as food preparing staff, cookers and supervisors, etc. This course

emphasizes the service, maintenance and food quality.

1.2 Management Training Excellence: is the course for chief staff, intern manager, manager assistant, manger, area
manager. The course emphasizes the product, inventory, human resource, cash management, leadership, planning,

holding cost, expense cost, and sale and profit establishment.

Manufacturing Employees

Is the training that emphasizes on the production, the product quality, the cost reduction, the increase of
productivity, and operational processes; in order to be in-line with the |SC 8001:2000, GMP system and HACCP
system, and the 1SQ22000:2005 system. Moreover, the company has also arranged Technical Training and other skill

improvement, and soft skill courses to the employees. 3. Supporting Employees:

Supporting Employees:

The development of the supporting employees is considered another important factor that will help the company to
be smoothly operated. The company expects to make the supporting employees feel as if they are the business
partners by encouraging hands-on experience through in-house training and through the advice of the experienced

personnel in each field, including sending the employees to join public training.

Moreover, the company has set up four training structures to improve the skill and knowledge of employees in the

three groups, which are;

1. Crientation Program is the course set up for the company's new employees. It will introduce the new comers

about the company, their job description and anything they need to know how to work efficiently.
2. Corporate Training Program is the course designed to help employees to apply what they learn in real working
environment. The company held either In-House Training or Public Training to develop the work efficiently of the

staffs.

3. Functional Training Program is the course designed to develop specialized skills and techniques i.e. knowledge on

production process etc.

4. Leadership Development Program is the course specially deigned to develop the potential of the organization's

leaders and management team.

In 2010, the company invested a total 2.7 million baht in human resources development.
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Welfare Policy

The company believes that its successful management is the result of the competent employees, who are skillful and
motivated. In addition, the employees' stability and good welfare provided by the company are the factors that help the
employees reach their highest potential, as well as having good quality of life. The company therefore, has the following

welfare policy;

1. Every employee will be treated fairly and respectfully as a part of the company.

2. The company will improve the environment within the company to be in tidiness and employee-friendly at all time.

3. The company will organize the sanitary cafeteria system, clean toilets, safe shuttle services, and efficient nursing
room as stated by law.

4. The company has set the employees' remuneration and welfare appropriately and fairly.

5. The company encourages all employees to constantly receive news and information.

6. The company provides high technology office supply, phone and fax systems, so that employees can gain most

valuable uses of the equipment.

Safety of Occupational Health and Workplace Environment Policy

Employees are considered highly valuable resources of the company; therefore, it has set up the safety of occupational
health and workplace environment policy, which can be elaborated as follows;

1. Work safety is the duty of every employee.

The company encourages the improvement on the work condition, for the safety of every employee.

The company encourages activities that enhance the work safety.

E S

Every level of supervisors must act as good role models by abiding by the safety rules and regulations in the workplace.
5. Every employee must regard the safety of his own and others, as well as the properties of the company at all time.
6. Every employee must cooperate with the company's measures on safety of occupational health and workplace

environment.

Human Resources Policy

The company is certain that the company's administration has succeeded because of the ability, skill and good
motivation of the employees. Therefore, the company has encouraged good ethics, disciplines, unity and understanding
among the employees as the company's goal in human resources management. The policy is to ensure the
effactiveness of the employees' skills and ability. In addition, the company has set policies on human resources

management as follows:

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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1 All employees will be treated fairly and with integrity as a part of the company.

2 The recruitment of any employee or the transfer of his /her responsibility will be done fairly, with consideration on
qualification of each position.
The company will constantly support and develop the efficiency of the employees.

4 The company will set the incentives for the employees fairly as it found appropriate, depending on the job
description, the company performance, and the spending ability of the company.

5 The company encourages the employees to constantly receive related company information as appropriate.

Administration Policy

The company determines to create livable and workable scenery and environment for every employee, so that they will
have pleasurable working conditions. The company is certain that the good environment, both inside and outside will
motivate the employees to want to come to work everyday. Therefore, the company has set the administration policies to

improve the working environment, both inside the office and outside, as follows:

1 Improve the internal working environment to be in order as found appropriate.

2 QOrganize the cafeteria system as well as the security system and the employees' lockers. Also, there will be
improvement on the cleanliness of the toilets, the safety of employees' shuttle buses and the standards of the
first-aid room as stated by law.

3  Organize the system of office supplies, telephones, faxes to best benefit the employees and the company.

4 Create good relationship with external organizations and visitors as well as the government affairs as stated by law.

5 The company will ensure that the employees have constantly received related company information as appropriate.

8. Internal Control
The company sees the importance of the internal control that creates efficiency, both in the executive and the operational
levels. The company has therefore, set up the internal control that covers all aspects, including the accounting and
finance, the operation that abides by the law and other related rules and regulations; as well as having efficient checks
and balances system that can protect the investment and capital of the shareholders and the company's assets. In
addition, the company has set up Internal Affairs department to inspect the operation of every department and division of
the company and its supporting organizations, including providing advices regarding the internal control system that
concerns crucial risks of the company; as well as evaluate the efficiency and sufficiency of the internal control, and
closely monitor the internal control for the management. In addition, the company encourages the department to follow
the universal standards based on International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing of the Institute
of Internal Auditors {llA}. The board of directors will supervise the Internal Affairs departiment so that it can perform its
duty freely through the checks and balances system, and constantly report directly to the Audit Committee, to ensure that
the internal control system continues to be a significant mechanism that pushes the company to its sustainable growth,

so that the company can achieve its Vision and Mission.

The internal control's framework for the board of directors, including the Audit Committee and the internal affairs
department, is based on the Internal Control Integrated Framework of the Committee of Sponsoring Crganizations of the

Tread way Commission {COSQ0} that covers in five aspects.

Annual Report 2010



OISHI ?

SROVP

Control Environment
Risk Assessment
Control Activities

Information & Communication

ook N

Monitoring & Evaluation

The consideration is based on internal audit department, collecting information by interviewing and gathering evident from
executives. The conclusion is that the internal control of the company is sufficiently efficient; moreover, the internal control
satisfactory covers business transaction of shareholders, the Board of Directors, executives or other relevant parties. For

other parts of internal audit, the board agreed that the level of internal control is adequate.

For the internal control of two subsidiaries, the company determined of their systems to consistent with the company's
internal control framework. Besides, the company has regularly sent authorities to inspect their performance; therefore,

these two subsidiaries arranged their internal control sufficiently.

In order to carry the Good Corporate Governance, the board of commities has supported executives to develop the

quality of internal control system continuously.

Related Parties Transactions

9.1 Relationships with related parties

The company and its subsidiaries have entered into related parties transactions in 2010 as set forth below:

Name of entities Country of incorporation Nature of relationships
/nationality

Thippattana Arcade Co., Lid. Thailand Cirectorship
T.C.C Technology Co., Ltd. Thailand Cirectorship
South East Capital Co., Ltd. Thailand Cirectorship
The South East Insurance Co., Ltd. Thailand Cirectorship
The South East Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Thailand Cirectorship
Indara Insurance., PCL Thailand Shareholdership
N.C.C. Exhikition Crganizer Co., Lid. Thailand Cirectorship
F&B International Co., Ltd. Thailand Cirectorship
Thai Drink Co., Ltd. Thailand Cirectorship
Thai Beverage Logistics Co., Ltd. Thailand Cirectorship
Suraseth Co., Lid Thailand Cirectorship
Chospak Co., Lid Thailand Cirectorship
Seafood Beer Garden Co., Lid. Thailand Cirectorship
Sang Som Co., Lid. Thailand Cirectorship
Thep arunothai Co., Ltd. Thailand Cirectorship
Lak Chai Khar Sura Co., Ltd. Thailand Cirectorship
S.P.M. Food and Beverage Co., Lid. Thailand Directorship
Fueng Fu Anant Co., Ltd Thailand Directorship
InverBev Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Related company
Mr. Tan Passakornnatee Thailand Shareholder and Director
(Mr. Tan Passakornnatee has resigned from the sompany's director
and managing director since September 2010

*

Transactions with the refated parties were presented as related party transactions and balances

untit September 2010,

Qishi Group Public Company Limited




9.2 Pricing policies

The pricing policies for particular types of transactions are explained further below:

Transactions

Pricing policies

Purchase and sale of goods

Cost plus margin / contractually agreed price

Purchase and sale of property,
plant and equipment

Net book value / mutually agreed price

Rental income and expenses

Contractually agreed price

Consultancy income

Contractually agreed price

Interest income and expenses

Interest rate close to interest of financial institution

Cther income and expenses

Mutually agreed price

Significant transactions for the years ended 31 December 2010 with related parties were as follows:

Sales to parent company

Ref Name Relationship Amount Balance due
1 Thai Beverage PCL Cirectorship 888,689 277,603
Total 888,689 277,603
Sales to related companies

Ref Name Relationship Amount Balance due
1 Beer Thai 1991 PCL Cirectorship 11,849 <
2 CGT Co,, Ltd. Cirectorship 604,740,545 2
3 Fuengfu Anan Co., Lid. Cirectorship 35,327 =
4 Theparunothai Co., Ltd. Cirectorship 6,182 -
5 Lakchai Kharsura Co., Lid. Cirectorship 31,323 2
6 Pomthip Co., Ltd. Directorship 2,448,304,685 195,333,300
7 Pomkit Co., Ltd. Cirectorship 168,141,300 15,056,960
8 Pomkhlang Co., Ltd. Cirectorship 134,528,603 12,639,782
9 Pomchoke Co., Lid. Cirectorship 157,041,662 15,752,241
10 Pomcharoen Co., Ltd. Cirectorship 211,598,000 16,253,277
11 Pomburapha Co., Ltd. Cirectorship 150,296,263 14,763,143
12 Pomphalang Co., Ltd. Cirectorship 296,505,631 21,804,319
13 Pomnakorn Co., Ltd. Cirectorship 85,504,021 9,726,643
14 Chosbhak Co, Ltd. Cirectorship 31,009 30,000
15 Thai Beverage Marketing Cirectorship 222,290 26,000
16 InterBev Malaysia Sdn Bhd Cirectorship 258113 =
Total 4,255,256,903 301,485,564
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Purchases from related parties

Ref Name ltems Amount
1 SPM Food and Drink Co., Ltd. Assels 16,000,000
Total 16,000,000
Purchases from related parties
Ref Name Relationship Amount Balance due
1 Beer Thai 1991 PCL Transport 29,797 -
2 Pomthip Co., Ltd. Raw materials 772,398 174,714
3 Pomkit Co., Ltd. Raw materials 6,038 904
4 Pomklang Co., Ltd. Raw materials 7,130 4,924
5 Pomchoke Co., Ltd. Raw materials 225,640 32,034
6 Pomburapha Co., Ltd. Raw materials 65,820 17,369
7 Pomphalang Co., Ltd. Raw materials 81,057 24,852
8 Pan-International {Thailand} Co., Lid. Supplies 49,675,156 9,710,261
9 Thai Drink Co., Ltd. 99,285 21,580
10 Berli Jucker PCL 32,892,605 2,561,828
Total 83,858,926 12,948,478
Purchase of assets from related parties
Ref Name ltems Amount
1 TCC Techonology Co., Lid, Computer 279,650
2 Southeast Insurance {2000} Co., Ltd. Insurance 2,642,816
3 Beer Thip Brewery {1991} Co., Ltd. Transport 60,610
Total 2,983,016
Rental paid to related parties
Ref Name Branch Amount
1 Thippat Arcade Co., Ltd. Panthip Plaza 4,876,273
2 TCC PD 11 Co, Ltd. Log Home 12,096,000
3 Tan Passakornnatee OK Suki 647,050
4 Kluey Kluey Co., Lid. Shabushi 360,000
5 Suraseth Co,, Ltd. Buffet 1,479,280
6 NCC Exhibition Grganizer Co., Ltd. Rental 5,667
7 Thai Beverage Marketing Co., Ltd. Rental 404,300
8 Seafood Beer Garden Co., Ltd. Rental 3,309,040
Total 23,178,010
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Promotion expenses paid in advance by related parties

Ref Name Relationship Amount Balance due
1 Pomthip Co., Ltd. Promotion 53,061,237 48,614,708
2 Pomkit Co., Ltd. Promotion 1,579,657 11,825
3 Pomkhlang Co., Ltd. Promotion 901,898 29,725
4 Pomchoke Co., Ltd. Promotion 1,521,581 12,481
5 Pomcharoen Co., Ltd. Promotion 1,208,540 29,238
6 Pomburapha Co., Ltd. Promotion 1,183,024 47,500
7 Pomphalang Co., Ltd. Promotion 1,543,034 4,680
8 Pomnakorn Co., Ltd. Promotion 692,130 17,162

Total 61,691,001 48,767,719
Other expenses paid to related parties

Ref Name Relationship Amount Balance due
1 Sang Som Co., Lid. Transport 2,620 2,803
2 Pomthip Co., Ltd. Entrant fee 13,386,924 -
3 Beer Thip {1991} Co,, Ltd. Transport 2 64,853
4 Thai Beverage Marketing Co., Ltd. Supplies - 433,136
5 Southeast Capital Co., Ltd. Car Rental 896,172 78,709
6 Southeast Insurance {2000} Co., Lid.| Insurance premium 6,095,889 104,741
7 Southeast Life Insurance Co., Ltd. | Insurance premium 904,770 -
8 Suraseth Co., Ltd. Utilities 4,217,682 340,945
10 Indra Insurance Co., Lid. Insurance premium 135,028 -
13 F&B International Co., Ltd. Services 3,738 -
14 Thippat Arcade Co., Ltd. Utilities 3,392,730 312,605
15 TCC PD 11 Co, Ltd. Services < 1,008,000
16 NCC Image Co., Ltd. Utilities 1,820 -
17 OGT Co,, Ltd. Promotion 218,154 -
18 Seafood Beer Garden Utilities 1,604,387 113,742
15 Thank You Service Co., Ltd. Utilities 1,629,770 -
20 Kluey Kluey Co., Ltd. Utilities 1,131,327 -

Total 33,521,012 2,459,535
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9.3 Necessity of related parties transactions

531 Rental

Location selection based on feasibility studay and rental rate is at arm length.

9.3.2 Sales to related parties

Terms of trades is at arm length and at market prices.

9.3.3 Purchases and expenses paid to related parties

Same with above

9.4 Approval process for related parties transactions
If there is potential conflict of interest, the Audit Committee will be invited to consider and give opinion in terms of
suitakility of such transactions. In case the Audit Committee unabkle to give comment, an independent advisor or

external auditor will be brought in to do so do that the Board of Directors of Shareholder can make their decision.

9.5 Policy or tendency of related parties transactions in the future
The company expect that the related parties transactions are part of the normal course of business which give th
maximum benefits o the company. The Board of Director shall comply to SET and SEC regulations and such

transactions shall be properly disclosed according to the accounting standard.

Oishi Group Public Company Limited



10. Financial Status and the Company Performance

10.1 Financial Statements

Summary of the auditor's report
The auditor's report in 2010 was audited by Ms. Nittaya Chetchotiros from KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. gave an

opinion that that the company's financial statement is present fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles.

10.2 The auditor's fee
10.2.1 Audit fee
The company and subsidiaries pay audit fee 4,080,000 baht in 2010.

10.2.2 Other fees

-None-
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Summary of Financial Statements

Consolidated {'000 baht])
ltems
2010 2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents 309,403 558,350 773,207
Trade accounts Receivable — net 606,482 589,919 450,040
Inventories 495,780 204,890 196,637
Other current assets 86,957 49,786 35,344
Cther long-term investments 12,160 8,500 8,500
Property, Plant and Equipment-net 2,966,079 1,635,608 1,548,504
Intangible Assets 46,708 45,220 31,767
Intangible Assets 91,995 101,674 111,352
Cther non current assets 162,015 277,811 90,824
Total Assets 4,777,579 3,471,798 3,246,175
Trade accounts payable 795,542 628,816 474815
Accrued expenses 274,484 315,097 248516
Cther accounts payable 288,145 111,252 102,372
Cther current liabilities 115,736 74,961 55,916
Deferred Income 784 1,620 2,063
Long term loan 600,000 = -
Other non-current liabilities 26,531 5,681 3202
Total Liabilities 2,101,226 1,137,427 886,884
Registered capital 375,000 375,000 375,000
Paid up capital 375,000 375,000 375,000
Premium on share capital 609,402 609,402 609,402
Appropriated- Legal reserve 37,500 37,500 37,500
Unappropriated Retained earnings 1,654,451 1,312,469 1,337,389
Total Shareholders' equity 2,676,353 2,334,371 2,359,291
Total liabilities and Equity 4,777,579 3,471,798 3,246,175
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Summary of the Company's Financial Statements

Consolidated {'000 baht)
ltems
2010 2009 2008

Sales 9,186,914 7127971 5852473
Other Income 33,371 28910 33,729
Total Revenue 9,220,285 7,156,881 5,886,202
Cost of sales 6,310,039 4,707,812 4,018,655
Selling and administrative expenses 1,853,209 1,685,179 1,369,492
Profit before interest expenses and income tax 1,057,037 753,880 598,055
Interest expenses = - 734
Income tax 47,555 2,560 4,853
Net profit 1,009,482 751,330 592,468
Number of shares {{000 shares} 187,500 187,500 187,500
Basic earnings per share

{par value 2 baht} 5.38 4.M 3.16

Consolidated {'000 baht)
ltems
2010 2009 2008

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,201,310 975,097 1,001,078
Net cash used in investing activities -1,382,797 -413,663 -250,942
Net cash provided by financing activities -67,500 -776,250 -375,734
Net increase in Cash and cash equivalents -248.987 -214,816 374402
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Financial Ratio
Consolidated {'000 baht)
ltems
2010 2009 2008

Liquidity Ratios

Liquidity Ratic (times} 1.02 1.24 1.65

Quick Ratio (limes) 0.62 1.02 1.39

Cash Ratio (times}) 0.92 0.97 1.26

Account Receivable Turnover {times}) 14.59 19.08 15.89

Average Collection period {days} 25.02 19.13 2297

Inventory turnover (limes) 18.01 23.45 19.26

Days sale outstanding {days} 20.26 15.57 18.95

Account payable Turnover (times) 8.86 8.563 9.24

Average Payment Pericd {days) 41.20 42.78 39.49

Cash Cycle {days) 4.09 -8.08 2.43
Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Margin 31.31% 33.95% 32.49%

Operating Profit Margin 11.14% 10.17% 9.48%

Cash to Profit Ratio 119.00% 129.78% 168.97%

Net Profit Margin 10.99% 10.54%% 9.95%

Return on Equity 40.29% 32.01% 26.33%
Efiiciency Ratios

Return on Asset 24.47% 22.37% 19.33%

Return on Fixed Asset 43.87% 47.19% 39.86%

Asset Turnover 223 212 1.94
Financial Policy Ratios

Debt to Equity Ratic (times) 0.79 0.49 0.38

Times interest earned (times} 022

Dividend Payout 59.44% 79.80% 94.94%
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Selling Expenses
The company has selling expenses in 2010 and 2009 equals to 851.7 million baht and 830.3 million baht respectively.
When compare selling expenses over total sales in 2010 and 2009, the percentage has decreased from 11.6% to 9.3%

due to decreasing in sales promotion.

Administrative Expenses, Management Benefit Expenses, and Net Foreign Exchange Loss

For the year of 2010 and 2008, company has 1,001.5 million baht and 864.% million baht as administrative expenses,
management benefit expenses and net foreign exchange loss or equivalent to 10.9% and 12.1% of sales revenue
respectively. The percentage is lower due to increasing in sale.

Net Profit
For the year of 2010, the Company's net profit is Baht 1,009.5 million, or 10.9% net profit margin. Net profit is increased
comparing with the same period in last year that is Baht ¥51.3 million or 10.5% of sales. Total net profit is increased 34.4%.

Financial Status

Assets
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Million Baht % of total assets Million Baht % of total assets
Current asseis 1,498.6 31.4% 1,403.0 40.4%
Land, buildings and Equipment {net) 2,966.1 62.1% 1,635.6 47.1%
Intangible Assels 138.7 2.9% 146.9 4.2%
Other non-current asset 174.2 3.6% 286.3 8.3%

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had total assets of 4,777.6 million baht. They had increased from the end of
2008 by 37.6% or 1,305.8 million baht. Total asset consists of 1} 1,498.6 million baht of current assets or 31.4% of total
assets and 2) 3,279.0 million baht of non-current asset or 68.6% of total asset.

Current Asset

Current asset is increased 95.6 million baht or 6.8% due to

1. Cash and cash equivalent is 309.4 million baht that decreased from the end of 2008 by {44.6%} or {249.0) million
baht mostly due to gain from operation activities 1,333.5 million baht, open new branches, renovation, new land, new
plant and new machineries 1,535.1 million baht, investment in government bonds 3.7 million baht, cash received from
sale of assets 21.0 million baht, dividend paid 667.5 million baht, and long term loan 600 million baht.
Account recsivable-net is 606.5 million baht that increased from the end of 2009 by 2.8% or 16.6 million baht
Inventory is 495.8 million baht that increased from the end of 2009 by 142.0% or 280.8 million baht due to preparing

stock for summer sales.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment - net

Land, Buildings, and Equipment - net is increased 1,330.5 million baht or 81.3% due to

1. Depreciation for year 2010 amounting 347.9 million baht,

2. Purchase new land and construct new plant and new machineries amounting 1,428.4 million baht,
3. Open new branches and renovate old branches amounting 270.0 million baht,
4

. Disposal of machineries and equipments amounting 20.0 million.
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Management's Discussion and Analysts on Operating Results

Consolidated Operating Resulis {Million Baht)
2010 2009 Compere.to
Sales Revenue 9,186.9 7,128.0 28.9%
Cost of sales 6,310.0 4,707.8 34.0%
Gross Profit 2,876.9 2,420.2 18.9%
Selling Expenses 851.7 830.3 2.6%
Admin. Expenses and Management Benefit Exp and Net Foreign Exchange Loss, 1,001.5 864.9 15.8%
Net Profit 1,0098.5 751.3 34.4%
Earnings per Share {Baht) 5.38 4.01 34.4%
Consgclidated Operating Resulis - Classified by Business {Million Baht)
2010 2009 Gempallo
Sales Revenue - Food 4,076.5 32984 23.6%
Sales Revenue - Beverage 51104 3.8296 33.4%
Total Sales Revenue 9,186.9 7,128.0 28.9%
Net Profit - Food 237.3 2005 18.4%
Net Profit - Beverage 7722 550.8 40.2%
Total Net Profit 1,009.5 751.3 34.4%

Sales

In 2010, the company has sales revenue totally 9,186.9 million baht, which is 28.9% increased from 2009 that had sales
revenue totally 7,128.0 million kaht. It can be classified as 4,076.5 million baht from sales revenue of food business or
equivalent to 44.4% of total sales revenue, and 5,110.4 million baht from sales revenue of beverage business or 55.6% of
iotal sales revenue. For the higher sales revenue when comparing to 2009, it comes from 33.4% increased in sales
revenue from beverage business due to promotion campaigns {Japan Tour season 3). The sales revenue of food
business is increased 23.6% due to sale promotion, and opening twenty two {22} more branches than 2009 {Buffet 3,

Shabushi 11, Ramen 4, Maido 1, and Kazokutei 3}.

Cost of sales
Total cost of sales of the company for 2010 is 6,310.0 million baht or equivalent to 68.7% of total sales. Total cost of
sales for 2009 was 4,707.8 million baht or 66.0% of total sales. The company has higher percentage cost of sales due to

higher cost of sales of beverage business and food business.
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Liabilities

December 31, 2010

December 31, 2009

Million Baht % of Liabilities Million Baht % of Liabilities
Current liabilities 1.473.9 70.2% 1,130.1 99.4%
Other non-current liabilities 627.3 29.8% 7.3 0.6%%

As of December 31, 2010, total liabilities are 2,101.2 million baht. They are increased by 84.7% or 963.8 million baht due

to increased in Account Payables-Trade, Accounts payable-asset acquisition, and long term loan.

Shareholders' equity
As of December 31, 2010, total shareholders' equity is 2,676.4 million baht, which increased by 342.0 million baht from

the end of 2009 or 14.7%, due to net profit for year amounting 1,009.5 million baht and dividend payment amounting
667.5 million baht.

11. Related Information

-None-
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12. Corporate Social Responsibility
The catastrophe that happened to Japan on 11 June 2011 dealt a serious blow in terms of casualties, properties

damages. Qishi Group PCL has been involved in raising donation for the Japanese who suffered from this natural

disaster :

1. Deducted 5% from restaurants' sales to make the donation
2. Encourage the customers to donate by contributing their money in Qishi's donation boxes

3. Encourage Facebook's fan page to click Like at Qishi News Station page, for every "Like" Qishi will donate JPY 10.

In addition, the company also participated in the charitable activities to help those who suffered from flood in the

South. We have contributed Baht & for each Like click in facebook.
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13. Other related data

- None-
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The company's board of director is responsible for financial statements of Cishi Group Public Company Limited and
consolidated financial statements of the company and subsidiaries including financial information, presented in an annual
report. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The
company chooses the most appropriated accounting practice and uses it as a standard practice. The practice is ensured an

ample extent to which information disclosed for the benefit of shareholders and investors.

The company's board has organized effective risk management system and internal control system o ensure accuracy,

completeness, and enough information of the financial statement and to prevent any corruption.

The company's board has appointed an Audit Committee to responsible for an auditing process both for financial statements
and for internal checking and monitoring. This, in another way, is to have a risk management system. The Audit Committee's

report is presented in the annual report.

The company's financial statements, the company and subsidiaries' consolidated financial statements have been audited by
KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. Along the auditing process, the company gave a full support on required documents. The

auditor's report on auditing matter is presented in the annual report.

The company board agrees that the internal control is in satisfying level and is able to guarantee that financial statements of
Qishi Group Public Company Limited and consolidated financial statements of the company and subsidiaries as of December

31, 2008 are credible based on accounting standards and related rules and regulations.

Fi /
/ N
= - V-

{Narong Srisa-arn}

Chairman
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Qishi Group Public Company Limited {"the Company") is composed of three independent members,
namely, Mr. Vikrom Koompairochana, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Ms. Potjanee Thanavaranit and Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn,
Audit Committee members. The Audit Committee members are considered by the Company to be qualified, knowledgeable and
experienced persons. Their qualifications are in accordance with the requirements of the Company's Charter of Audit Committee.
They are truly independent persons who are not involved in the management of the Company, neither do they hold any position in

the Company, its subsidiaries and other affiliates.

During 2010, the Audit Committee had performed its duties within the scope of responsibilities assigned to it by the Board of
Directors and in accordance with the regulations set by the Company in the Charter of Audit Committee, and the Code of Best
Practice of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Audit Committee made the review of the good corporate governance, the
financial statements and the appropriateness of disclosures of information regarding transactions between the Company, its
subsidiaries and other affiliates, and transactions with tendency to cause conflict of interests, and the appropriateness of internal
control systems. The Commitiee also played a role in the progressive development of internal control systems, strict monitoring of
the Company's internal audit section, the selection and the appointment of the Company's statutory auditors as well as the
evaluation of their compliance with professional requirements and their performances, quality of services and the appropriateness

of their remuneration.

To ensure that the Company's operations are undertaken efficiently and transparently and can be audited at all steps in
accordance with the policies of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee has carried out its duty with responsibility to make

sure that the Company continues to develop good corporate governance.

In 2010, 10 meetings were held by the Audit Committee and all 3 members of the Committee attended the meetings without any
absence. Relevant execulives were invited to the meetings to make clarifications on certain issues appeared in the course of

internal audit. Corrections and improvements can accordingly be made and discrepancies can thus be prevented from recurrence.

The followings are principal performances carried out by the Audit Committes in 2010:

1. Review the accuracy of the Company's financial reports, and the adequacy of information disclosure.
The Audit Committee reviewed the Company's Annual Financial Report and its Quarterly Reports before proposing
them to the Board of Directors for approval. |n so doing, the Committee ensured that facts and figures, and details
contained in the financial reports, as well as information on transactions between the Company, its subsidiaries and
other affiliates, or transactions with tendency to cause conflict of interests were amended correctly, and also whether

the disclosures of significant information are accurate and reliable.

In this connection, the statutory auditors were invited to the meeting of the Audit Committee to discuss and clarify on
some significant issues relating to the financial statements prepared by the Company's Management in compliance
with Thai Accounting Standards and Thai Financial Reporting Standards including related interpretations and
guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions and with generally accepted accounting
principles in Thailand. The Audit Committee could then verify whether sufficient significant information were disclosed
as required by the aforementioned standards, interpretations, guidelines and principles. Furthermore, a-joint meeting
was held between the Audit Committee and the statutory auditors in compliance with the Practice Guidance issued
by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, allowing both parties 1o discuss any issues of interest te.the two sides without

participation of the Management.

Qishi Group Public Company Limited
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2. Evaluation of the services of the statutory auditors
The Audit Committee carried out the evaluation of the quality of services of KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd., the statutory
auditors, and the worthiness of their remuneration, taking into consideraticn the following factors - professionalism,
efficiency, and independence. The Audit Commitiee was of the view that KPMG Phoomchai Audit Lid., the statutory
auditors, had given satisfactory services accordingly, providing the Company useful advices and recommendations,

which were helpful for the Company's Annual Financial Repert and internal centrol improvements.

3. Monitor of the Company's operations
The Audit Committee played its part in monitering the Company's operations to ensure that the Good Corporate
Governance and the Code of Best Practice of the Stock Exchange of Thailand are carried out. The Committee has

continuously followed the guidelines for the strengthening of good corporate governance of the Company.

4. Approval of the scope of work and the annual audit plan of the Company's internal audit.
The Audit Commitiee approved the scope of work and the annual audit plan of the Company's internal audit for the
year 2010. Additionally, the performances of the internal audit were regularly monitered, with the Company's risk
management and internal controls being taken into consideration. Advices were consistently given to the Company's
internal audit on varicus matters for the improvement of internal audit systems and the efficiency of their

performances.

5. Approval of the scope of work and the annual audit plan of the Company's internal audit.
The Audit Committee regularly reviewed the adequacy and suitability of the Cempany's internal control systems and
activities. In this regard, reports presented by the internal audit were carefully considered and followed up to ensure
that correct internal control systems were undertaken and improvements on controls and preventive measures were

properly and timely carried out by the Company's Management as advised by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee performed its duties independently from the Board of Executive Directors and the Management with
strong emphasis on internal centrols to ensure that good governance and adequate internal controls were appropriately
applied. Significant issues based on the issues reported by the internal audit were regularly presented to the Board of

Directors for policy guidelines on the improvements or corrections in some sectors.

In the view of the Audit Committee, the Company's overall internal control systems are currently adequate. Discrepancies in
the control systems or transactions that might cause conflict of interests and may significantly affect the Company's
operations have not been nected. In addition, the Audit Committee strongly advised the Management to give careful attention
to the continuous improvement of internal control systems with a view to bringing about greater efficiency and continued

success of the Company's business operations and making them increasingly in compliance with relevant international

A Falubrad

{Mr. Vikrom Koompairochana)

standards.

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Report of the Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee of Qishi Group Public Company Limited consists of seven committees, who are the members of
the board and the executives from various departments. The committee was appointed by the board of directors to oversee the
efficiency of the company's risk management The company has also set up the roles and responsibility of the Risk Management

Committee, which are:

1. Set policy and integrated risk management framework, that thoroughly cover main business risks i.e. business and
operational risks.

Approve the appropriate risk management plans that can be applied throughout the organization.

Follow up on the company's main risk factors, as well as, any risk indication while updating the current data.
Cffer advises and instructions on risk management.

Communicate with the Audit Committee on main risk factors, to be in line with the internal control.

N

Report to the company's board of directors regarding the risk factors and risk management.

In 2010, the commitiee held a total of ¥ meetings, in order to perform their duty and the responsibility assigned by the Board of
Directors. The Risk Management Committee has constantly reported the result of the significant risk management, including

advices to the company's Board of Directors. The essence of the Risk Management Commitiee's performance is as follows:

1. Set up policies, strategies, and goals of risk management for the entire organization, as the guideline for efficient risk
management for the executives.

2. Review the risk management policy and prepare risk management plan by evaluating from the risk factors that might
affect the operation of the company. Develop risk management system that covers all aspect of the organization.
Prepare risk management plan for all level by brainstorming with the executives, the employees from various departments.
Set up risk management system to reduce the long-term effect that the risk might cause to the company.

Cevelop efficient risk management system and supervise the appropriate risk management for the company.
Encourage the executives and the employees to see the significance of the risk management, and manage the risk
that might obstruct the personnel to reach their goal. Support and push forward the plan of risk management for all
lavels of the organization, and make the policy the organizational culture.

6. Follow up on the progress of risk management in related divisions, and constantly arrange the risk evaluation.

The Risk Management Committee has performed its assigned duty thoroughly and gives out opinions to the executives freely

for the highest benefits of the shareholders and all stakeholders.

The Risk Management Committee

T

{Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn}

Chairman of the Risk Management Committees
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Cishi Group Public Company Limited has given the significance to the good corporate governancs; it has determined to
continuously improve the company's good corporate governance. The company has strictly abided by the Codes of Best
Practices for listed companies. The company is certain that good corporate governance would benefit the company's business
operation as well as adding value and rewarding the shareholders in the long run. Since the company has fiduciary duty to
the shareholders, investors and other stakeholders, the Board of directors has been following the SET's Codes of Best
Practices for listed companies, in which company's policies shall be set to be in line with the criteria of the Stock Exchange

of Thailand. The policy is to ensure that the company will reach its ultimate goal in business operation and sustainable growth.

Policy on Corporate Governance
The board believes that the policy will play an important role in successful business operation. Therefore, the company's

good governance policy has been set to cover in many areas:

- Certain system is set to build up confidence to the shareholders and the concerned party that fair and equal treatment
will be offered to every party.

- Supervising the executive board to efficiently abide by the policy set by the board of directors, for the best interest of
the shareholders within the boundary of the law and business etiquettes.

- Assist execulives' performance to be transparency, auditable and information disclosure.

- Provide appropriate control and risk management systems.

- Determine code of conduct to operate business for Board of commitiee, executives and employees to be followed.

The company is well aware of the significance of the good corporate governance that it is the foundation of efficient
organization. The company, therefore, strictly operate its institution according to conduct guided by the Securities and
Exchange Commission {SEC} and the Stock Exchange of Thailand {SET}, based on the international code of conducts set by
the Crganization for Economic CC-operation and Development {OCECD}. The conduct comprises 5 principles on good

corporate governance, which are as follows:
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The board of directors is aware that shareholders are the full owners of the company, administer through the appointment
the board of directors as their delegates, and have a right to make decision on any significant changes. The company
supports shareholders to exercise their rights such stock selling or purchasing, transaction, profit allocation, information
notification, voting in shareholders' meeting to discharge the commitiee, appoint account auditors and other effected issues
to the company such as dividend allocation, regulations determination/adjustment and the Memorandum of Association,

capital increase or decrease and particular issues' approvals.

The hoard of directors has the policy to treat all shareholders equally, fairly, as well as facilitating the shareholders in the
meeting participation, receiving information and the rights to vote in the Shareholders' Meeting. In each mesting, the board of
directors gives the opportunity to every shareholder equally to ask questions, give opinions, and advices to the company.
Also, the company will assist the shareholders in the meeting to encourage the rights to vote. The company will send Proxy
Forms, along with the Meeting Invitation in case the shareholders are unable to attend the mesting. The shareholders can
appoint someone else or the independent directors as proxy to attend the mesting, and shall have the rights to vote as

stated by the shareholders.

In the Shareholders' Meeting, the board of directors must make a letter of appointment of the mesting with specific details
and send to the shareholders at least 7 days in advance for the shareholders' thorough decision. In addition, the resolution of
the Board of Directors must be stated in each meeting agenda, and meeting minute must be taken for the shareholders' later

inspection.

The shareholders shall acknowledge the regulations and procedures on the participation of the meeting, as well as receiving
sufficient information to consider every agenda before the mesting. The sharsholders also have the rights to make enquiry

and can appoint a proxy to participate in the meseting. The granted proxy has the equal vote as the shareholders.

The board of directors shall organize the shareholders' Annual General Mesting within four months from ending date of the
accounting period of the company. All the Shareholders Meetings other than mentioned shall be called Extraordinary
Shareholders Mestings. The board of directors may call an Extraordinary Meeting at any time as deemed appropriate. During
the shareholders' meeting, the company will give equal freedom to every shareholder in expressing opinion and make
inquiries regarding the topics and motions of the meeting without time limitation. The meeting's chairman, the board of
directors and the audit committee will participate in answering the enquiry, as well as, acknowledge every opinion of the

shareholders. Every topic shall be noted in the minute of the meeting for future examination.

In addition, the board of directors has set up policies to supervise and protect the rights of the shareholders; as well as
encourage every shareholder to claim their rights freely and equally. The Shareholders' policy must be complied with the
company's Good Corporate Governance that is in-line with the rules and regulation of the Stock Exchange of Thailand {SET}
and the Securities and Exchange Commission, including other related laws. The board also realizes and-sees thé importance

of the shareholders' rights, and will not carry any action that might deprive the rights.
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The company has valued the equal treatment toward the shareholders, and has set policies to supervise and protect the
shareholders' rights, as well as encouraging every party to strictly comply with the policies. All shareholders, executives, or

non-executives, major, or minority shareholders, can be ensured 1o receive equal and fair treatment from the company.

Moreover, the board of directors has set up policies to supervise and protect the rights of the shareholders; as well as
encourage every shareholder to claim their rights freely and equally. The shareholders' policy must be complied with the
company's Good Corporate Governance that is in line with the rules and regulation of the Stock Exchange of Thailand {SET},
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and other related regulations. The board of directors has determined to strictly

abide by the rules and regulations of the SET and SEC.

The board determines that every director and executive discloses any information regarding their stake to the company or
other relevant parties to prevent any conflict of interests and capability to make a decision for the overall company. In this

case, the company identified any committee and any interest earner cannot be part of related-interest transaction.

The board of directors has set preventive measures on any member or group of board of directors or executive's exploit fraud
such as insider trading or disclose improperly inside information to anyone related to the board of directors or executives,

which might cause damages to the shareholders.

In terms of the use of internal information, the company determined the executives must inform the Securities and Exchange
Commission {SEC} in case of any change in the company's security holdings, according to the Securities and Exchangs Act
1992 {2535), Section 59. Also, the disclosure of any information that has not yet been public for any personal use, including
the trading of the executives and employees' stock trading are prohibited. The trading of the company's shares during the
one-month period prior to the release of the company's financial budget must be avoided. Violations will be punished from
probation to termination of employment. The company stated the policy in written document to prohikit all staffs from making
any sale transaction upon receiving the crucial information that will affect the company's stock price, until the information is

disclosed to the public 30 days in advance.
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The Role of the Shareholders

The Board of Directors is well aware that every stakeholder must be treated with care following by their rights stated in
relevant laws and regulations. The board has considered creating cooperation between the company and the stakeholders for
company's financial stability and cooperating benefits. There are various groups of stakeholders in the good corporate
governance, essentially such as customers, employees, suppliers, shareholders or investors, creditors and communities,

society or government agencies. Other stakeholders include competitors.

The Board of Directors determined policies to treat each stakeholder must be according to their rights stated in laws and

regulations or company's conditions. No violation of their mentioned rights is allowed.

The Board of Directors has meant to develop a device to drive stakeholders' participation, leading to better performance and
permanent satiability of the company. The Board should reveal relevant and important information to stakeholders adequately

for efficiency participation.

The Board of Directors is well aware that the effective outcome of the company can be achieved by the contribution and
support of every stakeholder. Therefore, a policy has been set to create cooperation between the company and the
stakeholders that will lead to mutual benefits. The policy will as well ensure that every stakeholder will be protected and

freated with care. The policy can be elaborated as follows;

Sharsholders : - The company shall be operated with transparency, under the determination to grow and giving good
benefits to the shareholders in the long run.
Employees : - Every employee will be treated fairly and will be given appropriate reward.
- Employees are considered highly valuable resources of the company and must be treated fairly,
in terms of opportunity, remuneration, potential development, as well as the stability in quality of life
and safety in the workplace.
Customers : - The company determines to continuously develop the product quality and services of the company,
to ensure the highest customer satisfactory.
- Taking good care and paying attention to the customers with all will, along with maintaining the quality
and services of the products.
- Providing a division, or personnel to receive complaints from the customers, to ensure prompt solutions
to the customers' concerns.
Suppliers : - The company shall strictly abide by the trade agreement and contracts made with the suppliers.
The company determines to treat the suppliers equally and fairly, to ensure mutual benefits.
Creditors : - The company determines o treat the creditors equally and fairly. The company will also strictly abide
by conditions stated in the contract.
Compstitors : - The company will perform under the universal competition rules. The company will also treat the

competitors fairly and honestly. The company will not destroy the reputation of compstitors.
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Community : - The company shall carry the sense of responsibility to the environment and the community.
- The company shall build good conscience to everyone in the organization to take care and develop the

society, environment, along with the company's sustainable growth.

In order to operate business for the best interest of others, the board of directors has set a policy, where every party is
equally important, while achieving the goals of the organization. To succeed the policy, the boards of directors and executives,
as well as, employees must acknowledge the standard procedure stated in the business ethic guideline, where the fair
treatments toward the shareholders, customers, suppliers, competitors, the society and the employees are drawn. In addition,

the board is setting up mechanisms to ensure that the business ethic will be abided by.

In addition, the company shall abide by the rules and regulations stated in the law, to ensure that the stakeholders will be

treated with care.

Disclosure of Information and Transparency

The Board of Directors determined the company to disclose information related to the firm including financial and non-

financial information accurately, currently, completely, transparently and reliably to every stakeholder equally.

The Board of Directors is certain that all information in financial report must contain accuracy according to the standards of
the Accounting Profession Association of Thailand and were approved by independent accounting auditors. The board is

aware that quality of financial report is what shareholders and outsiders have placed greatly importance.

The company sees the importance of the disclosure of information related to the firm including financial and non-financial
information accurately, sufficiently and transparently to the investors and other related parties at the punciual time; the
information i.e. the Annual Report, Financial Report, other significant information stated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand
{SET), and information that might affect the company's stock price, shall be published through the SET's media, or an
appointment of the company's executives for the enquiries of such information must be allowed. Moreover, the Board of

Cirectors determined o set a transparency compensation payment process and asked for shareholders' approval.

Report by the Board of Directors
The board of directors is well aware how importance the credibility of financial report and the financial budget are. They show
the public the company's financial status, as well as its real performance. Therefore, the board has always given full

cooperation to the company's account auditors.

The board is responsible for the arrangement of the company's financial report, including the financial information shown in
the annual report. It supervises the management team in preparing financial budget by providing accurate and true financial
data, certified by the accountants and the standards of the Accounting Profession Association of Thailand. The board will

carefully apply appropriate policies while using thorough consideration and the logics of the arrangement.
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The board also acknowledges the significance of the internal auditory efficiency, as it is one of the key to successful
operation, as well as, preventing any misconduct. Therefore, Audit Committee is appointed to review and supervise the
internal auditory system. The Committee will also directing transparent and accurate arrangement of the company's financial
record. The Audit Committees are consisted of three independent committees. The end process of financial data arrangement
is when the audit committee stated their approval on the financial report in the annual report, as of December 31, 2009 that

the report is credible and accurate.

Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Executives

The company has considered the remuneration of the board of directors based on the comparative rate with others in the
same industry, listed in the SET. The remuneration is set to motivate the directors to continuously contribute good work at
the company. The company will also consider the remuneration appropriately, based on the responsibility of the board of

directors. The financial incentive of the company's board of directors is in the forms of monthly salary, and bonus

The company appointed a sub-committee to consider about remuneration for the Board of directors and executives, followed

by the resolution in shareholders' meeting. The annual report will show the sum of meeting expense and compensation.

Control of the use of Internal Information
The company has set clear policy regarding the disclosure of internal information, the financial report, and the company's
operation. The financial information, and other related business information shall be disclosed to the shareholders, investors,

analysts, and the public. The board of directors has the responsibility to strictly and transparently abide by the policy.
In addition, the disclosure of any information that has not yet been public for any personal use, including the trading of the

executives and employees' stock trading are prohibited. The trading of the company's shares during the one-month period

prior 1o the release of the company's financial budget must be avoided.
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The Responsibility of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has responsibility to the shareholders, regarding the management o fthe company. They must
supervise the management to reach the goal, and direction that benefit the shareholders as much as possible. At the same

time, the board must regard the benefits of all stakeholders.

Every member in the Board of Directors has leadership, great vision and no commitment in making any decision for
company's benefits and entire shareholders. The Board has set a system to separate duties between the Board of Directors
and management section distinctively and ascertained every organizational activity progress legally and with ethics. Every
board member understands its duty and nature of its business, thus being ready to express its own opinions independently
and self-improvement to an up-to-date situation. They are well aware of their honest performance with caution and

carefulness for ultimate mutual benefits and fair to every shareholder, receiving accurate and sufficient information.

The Board of Directors consists of qualified members in various skills, experiences and talents for company's sakes,

including devoting their time and attempts to achieve their duties forcefully.

To perform their responsibilities efficiently and successfully, the Board has set many sub-committees to assist and scrutinize
works as necessary; especially when neutrality is needed to judge and set policies and organization chart such report to the

Board of Directors.

Leadership and Vision

The board of directors will approve the direction of the company's vision, mission, goals, business plans and budgets. The
board's meeting will be held at least once every year quarter to follow up on the operation of the company, acknowledge the
management's proceedings, as well as, set up mechanisms to evaluate the achievement of the management team, both in

the short term and the long term.

Al board members are qualified personnel, who posses various skills, experiences and talents for company bensefits. The
candidate for the director position must come from transparent selection process by the company's board of directors. The
nomination of the successful candidate must be approved by the board of directors, and must be proposed as a
Shareholders' meeting agenda. The company shall reveal the profile, qualification, work experience and the share ownership

of the company's directors in the Annual Report.

Balance of the non-Executive Directors

The company has set up a set of committee by selecting from the criteria guided by the Stock Exchange of Thailand {SET},
and must pass the approval of the company's shareholders' mesting. Currently, there are 13 members of the directors’
board, which consist of four executive directors, and nine non-executive directors. Three of the non-executive directors will
also be the company's Independent Directors. The Independent Directors shall serve as the company's Audit Committee. The
directors must possess qualifications stated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand {SET), and shall be independent regarding

the company's auditing.

Aggregation or Segregation of Positions

The chairman of the board of directors and the managing director must be two separate persons, so that their duty in
supervision will be clearly divided. The head of management team will operate the company under the approval of the board
of director, where representative of the major stockholders and the audit committees are included. This code of conduct

would enhance the company's checks and balances system.
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The Board of Directors and the executives have clear, divided responsibility. The Board of Directors are authorized to
consider and approve the overall policy i.e. Vision, Mission, Strategy and Corporate Governance Policy, while the executives

are required to follow the policies set by the board.

The Director's Meetings

The board of directors is set to attend the mesting once in every year quarter, while special mesting can also be held if
necessary. The motions of the mesting must be clearly stated. Prior to every meeting, the company's secretary must send
the mesting invitation and its attachments to the board members at least seven days before the mesting. The arrangement
will give time for the board to thoroughly study the given information before the mesting. In every mesting, each board
member has the power 1o debate, and freely expressing his/her opinion. At the same time, the company secretary will noted

the meeting minutes in written document for further examination, as soon as the document is approved by the board.

In 2008, the board of directors held eight meetings in total, the participation of each board member can be summarized as

follow;
Name of Directors Position No. of Meeting Participation

Mr. Narong Srisa-arn Chairman 8/10

Mr. Thapana  Sirivadhanabhakdi Vice Chairman 710

Mr. Tan Passakornnatee Director and Managing Director 10/10

Mr. Sunisa Sukphantavorn Director 9/10

Mr. Yeuh Chin Chiu Director 9/10

Mr. Sithichai  Chaikriengkrai Director 710

Mr. Somkiat  Charecnkul Director 5/10

Mr. Ueychai  Tantha-cbhas Director 310

Mr. Pisanu Vichiensanth Director 6/10

Mr. Cholakanta Boobpavest! Director 10/10

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana Independent Director and Chairman of 10/10
the Audit Commitiee

Mr. Verachai  Tantikul®® Independent Director and Chairman of 10/10
the Audit Commitiee

Ms. Potjanee Thanavaranit®! Independent Director and Chairman of 10/10
the Audit Commitiee

Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn Independent Director and Chairman of 10/10
the Audit Commitiee

Remark o In case the direfors are unable to attend the Board of Directors' meeting as shown above because there is solid reason, the

director must notify the company in advance.

{1) Mr. Cholakanta Boobpaves has resigned since December 31, 2008,

{2) Mr. Verachai Tantikul has resigned as the company's director since February 24, 2008,

(3) Ms. Potianee Thanavaranit has been appointed as the replace of Mr. Verachai Tantikul for the director position
since February 24, 2008,
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Conflict of Interest

The boards of directors and executives are cautious of any possible conflict of interest that might occur. Therefore, the
boards supervise the use of inside information to prevent conflict of interest. In particular, The Board of Directors appointed
audit committee to consider the necessary and appropriate of any transaction occurred to any conflict of interest,
stakeholders or future conflict of interest. In case the audit commitiee does not have expertise in certain area, independent
specialists or accountants will be hired to give advices in the area. Hence, the hoards will be able to use the advice as
guideline in the decision making process. This solution will helps preventing any possible conflict of interest. In addition,
policies have been set up to prevent such conflicts by suggesting the committee, along with the employees to avoid any
personal use of inside information. The policy stated that all commitiees and employees avoid any transaction involving to the

conflict of interest.

Moreover, the company has clearly set policies to specially scrutinize any activity that might be conflict of interest. If a
director is holding stakes in any cass, the director's rights to vote will be forfeited. Also, the company has set policies that

prevent the director to exploit the internal information for personal use.

Control System and Internal Control

The board of directors has set up the internal control that covers all aspects, so that it abides by the law and other
related rules and regulations; as well as having efficient checks and balances system that can protect the investment and
capital of the shareholders and the company's assets. The company also sets the rank of approvals, the responsibility of the
executives and the employees. The company's rules and regulations are stated in written document, and there must be
Internal Affairs department to ensure the operation of each department is accurate, thorough and disciplined. In addition, the
Audit Committee will supervise the company's operation and management to ensure the effectiveness of the company's
internal control system, the credibility of the Financial Report. The Internal Affairs department must report directly to the Audit

Committes, who supervise and review the company's internal control system

The company determines to encourage the Internal Affairs department to fully perform the checks and balances, by
reporting directly to the Audit Committee, to ensure that the internal control system continues to be a significant mechanism
that pushes the company to its sustainable growth. In each of the Audit Committee's meeting, the manager of the Internal
Affairs department will report the inspection result to the Audit Committes. In addition, the committee will submit the opinion

report and advice, if there is any area that should be improved, to the board in each Board of Directors' mesting.

The company has set policy on Good Corporate Governance as a guideline for business operation for the directors, the
executives, the management and the employees. The Board of Directors will review and improve the policy on Good
Corporate Governance annually, to be suitable for the change in the business operation, the environment, as well as the

altered rules and regulations.
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Audit Report of Certified Public Accountant
To the shareholders of Oishi Group Public Company Limited

I have audited the accompanying consolidated and separate balance sheets as at 31 December 2010 and
2009, and the related statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended of
Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, and of Oishi Group Public Company Limited,
respectively. The Company’s management is responsible for the correctness and completeness of
information presented in these financial statements. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my andits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that I plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial positions as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 and the results of operations and
cash flows for the years then ended of Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, and of
Qishi Group Public Company Limited, respectively, in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

o

{Nittaya Chetchotiros)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 4439

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
23 February 2011



Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Balance sheets
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009

Assels

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade accounts receivable

Short-term loans to and amounts due
from related parties

Inventories

Dividends receivable from a subsidiary

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Other long-term investments
Amounts due from related parties
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Leasehold rights

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Note

4,6

Co ka0 s

10

11
12
13
4

Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

financial statements

2010 2009 2010 2009
{in Baht)

309,403,338 558,390,165 69,668,773 307,164,445
606,481,988 589,919,103 62,727,250 65,841,401
- - 967,066 5,301,066
495,779,483 204,889,549 46,036,310 27,659,773
- - 818,998,050 671,998,400
86,957,279 49,786,133 23,719,386 18,416,678
1,498,622,088 1,402,984,950 1,022,116,835 1,096.381,763
- - 578,000,000 578,000,000

12,160,000 8,500,000 - -
6,646,395 10,815,655 6,201,030 10,370,290
2,966,078,838 1,635,608,441 582,464,629 471,169,680
46,708,331 45,219,880 29,365,068 28,250,378
91,995,476 101,673,337 42,752,360 45,216,862
155,368,208 266,996,330 96,581,702 82,785,353
3,278,957,248 2,068,813,643 1,335,364,789 1,215,792,563
4,777,579,336 3.,471,798,593 2,357,481,624 2,312,174,326

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Qishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Balance sheets
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Liabilities and equity Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
{in Baht)
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable 4, 16 795,541,567 628,816,097 265,291,439 215,100,194
Short-term loans from and amounts
due to related parties 4 51,227,254 79,791,283 11,058,925 9,290,900

Accrued expenses 17 223,321,352 235,305,767 111,073,814 143,055,007
Accounts payable-assets acquisition 288,083,669 111,252,278 12,078,351 62,462 386
Income tax payable 44,101,180 350,272 37,769,040 -
Other current liabilities 18 71,635,827 74,610,725 48,196,903 60,226,212
Total current liabilities 1,473,910,849 1,130,126,422 485,468,474 490,134,699
Nen-current liabilities
Deferred income 784,732 1,619,644 567,923 1,337,210
Long-term loans from financial institution 13 600,000,000 - - -
Other non-curent liabilities 26,530,787 5,681,362 300,000 600,000
Total non-current liahilities 627,315,519 7,301,006 867,923 1,937.210
Total liabilities 2,101,226,368 1,137,427,428 486,336,397 492,071,909
Equity
Share capital 19

Authorised share capital 375,000,000 375,000,000 375,000,000 375,000,000

Issued and paid-up share capital 375,000,000 375,000,000 375,000,000 375,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 20

Premium on ordinary shares 609,402,184 609,402,184 609,402,184 609,402,184
Retained eamings

Appropriated to legal reserve 20 37,500,000 37,500,000 37,500,000 37,500,000

Unappropriated 1.654,450,784 1,312,468,981 849,243,043 798,200,233
Total equity 2,676,352,968 2,334,371,165 1,871,145227 1,820,102,417
Total liabilities and equity 4,777,579,336 3,471,798,593 2,357,481,624 2,312,174,326

e accompanying fotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Qishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statements of income

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Income

Revenue from sale of goods
Dividends income from subsidiaries
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of sale of goods

Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Management benefit expenses
Net loss on foreign exchange

Total expenses

Profit before finance costs and
income tax expense

Finance costs

Profit before income tax expense

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Basic earnings per share

Note

21,29

22

26

4,23

424
425

27

28

30

Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

financial statements

2010 2009 2010 2009
(in Baht)
9,186,914,264 7.127.970,649 4,295,333,314 2.704.752,400
" . 467,923 877 464,210,891
33,370,350 28,910,632 20,401,568 23,271,786
9,220,284,614 7,156,881,281 4,783,658,759 3,192,235,077

6,310,038,930

4,707,811,525

2,742,590,498

1,647,762,784

847,369,236 830,324,591 468,917,696 378,132,330
904,322,109 793,827,070 736,864,188 625,421,354
77,814,440 71,027,680 77,814,440 71,027,680

23,702,667 = 3 2
8,163247,382 6,402,990,866 4,026,186,822 2,722,344,148
1,057,037,232 753,890,415 757,471,937 469,890,929

= . (627,362) 2
1,057,037,232 753,890,415 756,844,575 469,890,929

(47,555,429) (2,559.981) (38,301,765) -
1,009,481,803 751,330,434 718,542,810 469,890,929
538 4.01 3.83 2.51

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statements of changes in equity

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Balance at 1 January 2009

Profit for the year

Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010

Profit for the year

Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2010

Balance at 1 January 2009

Profit for the year

Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010

Profit for the year

Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2010

Note

31

31

Nofe

31

31

Consolidated financial statements

Additional
Issued and paid-in capital Retained carnings
paid-up Appropriated to
share capital Share premium  legal reserve Unappropriated Total equity
(in Baht)
375,000,000 609,402,184 37,500,000 1,337,388,547 2,359,290,731
- - - 751,330,434 751,330,434
= = z {776,250,000) (776,250,000)
375,000,000 609,402,184 37,500,000 1,312,468,981 2,334.371,165
- - - 1,009,481,803 1,009,481,803
- - - {667,500,000) (667,500,000}
375,000,000 609,402,184 37,500,000 1,654,450,784 2,676.352,968
Separate financial statements
Additional
Issued and paid-in capital Retained earnings
paid-up Approprated to
share capital Share premivmm legal reserve Unappropriated Total equity
(in Baht)

375,000,000 609,402,184 37,500,000 1,104,559,304 2,126.461,488
- - - 469,890,929 469,890,929
- - - (776,250,000} (776,250,000}
375,000,000 609,402,184 37,500,000 798,200,233 1,820,102,417
- - - 718,542,810 718,542,810
- - - (667,500,000} (667,500,000
375,000,000 609,402,184 37,500,000 849,243,043 1,871,145,227

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Qishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Statements of cash flows
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in Baht)

Cash flows froem operating activities
Profit for the year 1,009,481,803 751,330,434 718,542,810 469,890,929
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 363,679,318 330,817.990 153,097.373 113.299.335
{Reversal of) allowance for obsolete

and deteriorated inventory (4,654,114) 4,633,884 1,683,477 671,483
Write off of obsolete and

deteriorated inventories 31,336,299 29,701,077 6,522,660 8,477,021
Write off of other current asset 314,628 - 314,628 -
Interest income (2,772,434) (6,779,400) (1,724,318} (4,663,790)
Finance costs - - 627,362 -
Dividends income from subsidiaries - - (467,923,877} (464,210,891)
Unrealised (gain) loss on exchange 14,541,847 (3,725 - -
{Gain) loss cn disposal and write off

of property, plant and equipment (995,200) 7,773,950 8,593.315 6,128,006
Deferred income (834,912) (443,448) (769,287} (377,822)
Income tax expense 47,555,429 2,559,981 38,301,765 -

1,457,652,664 1,119,590,743 457,265,908 129,214,271

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trade accounts receivable (16,562,885) {139,873,012) 3,114,151 {23,145,538)
Amounts due from related parties 4,169,260 (2,915,220) 8,503,260 (8.125,134)
Inventories (317,572.119) {42,587,561) (26,582,674} {14,995,851)
Other current assets (37,444,765) {13,721,862) (5,617,336} 6,445,652
Other non-current assets (20,545,553) (12,082,845) (13,796,349} (13.067,196)
Trade accounts payable 166,725,470 153,999,044 50,191,245 63,939,799
Amounts due to related parties (28,564,029) 70,401,065 1,768,025 7,581,944
Accrued expenses (11,984.415) (3,820,006) (31,981,193} 28,384,692
Other current liabilities (11,608,150) 20,474,399 (12,029,307} 15,212,611
Other-non current liabilities 20,849 425 2,479,659 (300,000} -
Income tax paid (3,804,521) {4,856,143) (532,725) (616,579)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,201,310,382 1,147,088,261 430,003,005 190,828,671
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 2,731,425 6,926,121 1,724,317 4,663,790
Dividends received - - 320,921,228 801,110,081
Increase in other long-term investment (3,660,000) - - -
Sale of property, plant and equipment 21,023,243 1,422,426 342386 143,886
Payment of property, plant and equipment (1,395,307,140) {575,868,848) (317,595,118} (249.054.,607)
Payment of intangible assets (7,584,737) (18,134,341) (4,767,128} {13.866,638)
Net cash provided by (used in)

investing activities (1,382,797,209) (585,654,642) 628,685 546,296,492

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Qishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Statements of cash flows
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
(inn Baht)

Cash flows from financing afivities
Interest paid - - (627.,362) -
Dividends paid {667.500,000) (776,250,000) (667,500,000) (776,250,000)
Proceeds from long-term loan from

financial institution 600,000,000 - - -
Net cash used in financing activities (67,500,000) (776,250,000) (068,127,362) (776,250,000)
Net decrease in cash and

cash equivalents (248,986,827) (214,816,381) (237,495,672) 39,124,837)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of year 558,390,165 773,206,546 307,164,445 346,289,282
Cash and cash equivalents at end

of year 309,403,338 558,390,165 69,668,773 307,164,445

e accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements were authorised for issuc by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2011,
General information

Oishi Group Public Company Limited, the “Company”, is incorporated in Thailand and has its
registered office at 20™ Floor, UM Tower, 9 Ramkhamhacng Road, Suanluang, Bangkok.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand in August 2004.

The parent company during the financial year was Thai Beverage Public Company Limited which is
incorporated in Thailand.

The principal businesses of the Company are engaged in the Japanese restaurant and bakery, and
distribution of food and beverage.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Country of Ownership interest
Name of the entity Type of business incor poration Yo
2010 2009
Oishi Trading Co., Ltd. Manufacture and distribution Thailand 99.99 99.99
of food and beverage
Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd. Japanese ramen restaurant Thailand 99.99 99.99

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements issued for Thai reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language. This
English translation of the financial statements has been prepared for the convenience of readers not
conversant with the Thai language.

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht. All financial information presented in Thai Baht
has been rounded in the notes to the financial statements to the nearest thousand unless otherwise
stated. They are prepared on the historical cost basis except as stated in the accounting policies.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting standards
(“TFRS™), guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions (“FAP”); applicable
rules and regulations of the Thai Securitics and Exchange Commission; and with generally accepted
accounting principles in Thailand.

During 2010, the FAP announced the re-numbering of the following TFRS.

Former no. Revised no. Topic

TAS 11 TAS 101 Doubtful Account and Bad Debts

TAS 26 TAS 102 Income Recognition For Real Estate Business

TAS 27 TAS 103 Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar

Financial Institutions
TAS 34 TAS 104 Accounting for Troubled Debt Restructuring

9.
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the vears ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Former no. Revised no. Topic

TAS 40 TAS 105 Accounting for Investment in Debt and Equity Securities
TAS 42 TAS 106 Accounting For Investment Companies

TAS 438 TAS 107 Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation

The Group has adopted the revised Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (revised 2009), which was issued by the FAP during 2010 and effective on 26 May 2010.
The adoption of the revised framework does not have any material impact on the consolidated or
separate Company’s financial statements.

The FAP has issued during 2010 a number of new and revised TFRS which are not currently effective
and have not been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These new and revised
TFRS are disclosed in note 335.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

cstimates are recognised in the peried in which estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

3 Significant accounting policies
(¢}  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group™).

Subsidiaries

Subsidiarics are entitics controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The accounting
policies of subsidiarics have been changed where necessary to align them with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income or expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Foreign currencies transactions

Transactions in foreign currencics are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates rulingrat
the dates of the transactions.

10
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Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencics at the reporting date are translated to
Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised in the statement of income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at cost in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate arising
from investment activity. Derivative financial instruments are not used for trading purposes.

Derivative financial instrument are recognised initially at fair value; attributable transaction costs are
recognised in the statement of income when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, they arc
remeasured at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in
the statement of income

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price, if available. If a
listed market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting the difference between
the contractual forward price and the current forward price at the reporting date for the residual
maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid short-term
investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Trade and other accounts receivable

Trade and other accounts receivable are stated at their invoice value less allowance for doubtful
accounts.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is assessed primarily on analysis of payment histories and future
expectations of customer payments. Bad debts are written off when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost 1s calculated using the weighted average cost principle, and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity and is calculated using standard

cost adjusted to approximate average cost.

Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs to complete and to make the sale.

11
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(e) Investments
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of the Company are accounted for
using the cost method.
Investments in government bonds
Investments in government bonds that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity
are clagsified as held-to-maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are stated at amortised
cost. The difference between the acquisition cost and redemption value of such debt securities is
amortised using the effective interest rate method over the period to maturity.

() Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation
Depreciation 1s charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of cach part of an item of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:
Land improvements 10 Years
Buildings and building improvements 20 Years
Decoration, office equipment, furniture and fixture 5 Years
Internal systems 5.10  Years
Tools and machineries for manufacturing 5,7 Years
Restaurant utensils 5 Years
Vehicles 5 Years
No depreciation is provided on frechold land or assets under construction and installation.

()  Intangible assets
Intangible asscts that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised in the statement of
income on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives from the date that they are available
for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Software licences 10 Years
Operation rights 10 Years

() Leaschold rights

Leaschold rights of building area are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Leaschold rights are amortised and recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the agreements.

12
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Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets arc reviewed at cach reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts
are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of income unless
it reverses a previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the asset’s value in use and fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely

mdependent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Interest-bearing lLiabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction charges.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing liabilities arc stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the statement of income over the
period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Trade and other accounts payable

Trade and other accounts payable are stated at cost.

Deferred income

Deferred income from franchise agreements is recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the agreements.

Employee benefits

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the
statement of income as incurred.

Revenue

Revenue excludes value added taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade discounts.

Sale of goods and services rendered

Revenue is recognised in the statement of income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there is continuing management
involvement with the goods or there arc significant uncertaintics regarding recovery of the

consideration due, associated costs or the probable return of goods. Service income 1s recognised as
setvices are provided.
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009
Rental income
Rental income from property is recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives granted arc recognised as an integral part of the total rental
income. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Franchise income

Franchise income is recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
agreements.

Subsidized income

Subsidized income is recognised in the statement of income on the accrual basis according to the
agreed content stated in the contract or over the term of the agreements.

Interest and dividend income

Interest income is recognised in the statement of income on the accrual basis. Dividend income is
recognised in the statement of income on the date the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

(@) FExpenses
Operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease mcentives received are recogmised in the statement of income
as an integral part of the total lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the statement of
income for the accounting period in which they are incurred.
Iinance costs
Interest expenses and similar costs are charged to the statement of income for the period in which they
are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to be prepared for its intended use or sale.

(r) Income tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current tax. Current tax is the expected tax

payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

4 Related party transactions and balances
Related parties are those parties linked to the Group and the Company as sharcholders or by common

shareholders or directors. Transactions with related parties are conducted at prices_based on market
prices or, where no market price exists, at contractually agreed prices.
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Relationships with related parties that control or jointly control the Company or are being controlled
or jointly controlled by the Company or have transactions with the Group were as follows:

Name of entities Country of  Nature of relationships
incorporation
/nationality
Thai Beverage Public Company Limited Thailand Parent company and directorship
Oishi Trading Co., Ltd. Thailand Subsidiary and directorship
Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd. Thailand Subsidiary and directorship
0.G.T. Co., Ltd.* Thailand Related company of the Company’s
shareholder
Pan International (Thailand) Co., Ttd. Thailand Directorship
TCCPD 11 Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Thank You Service Co., Ltd. * Thailand Directorship
Kluey Kluey Co., Ltd. * Thailand Directorship
Berli Jucker Public Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Pomthip Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Pomburapa Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Pomklung Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Pomchok Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Pomkit Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Pomcharoen Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Pompalang Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Pomnakorn Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Thai Beverage Marketing Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Beer Thai (1991) Public Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Beer Thip Bewery (1991) Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Surathip Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Thippatana Arcade Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
T.C.C. Technology Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Southeast Capital Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
The Southeast Insurance Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
The Southeast Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Indara Insurance Public Co., Ltd. Thailand Some common shareholder
N.C.C. Exhibition Organizer Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
N.C.C. Management and Development Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
N.C.C. Image Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
F&B International Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Thai Drink Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Thai Beverage Logistic Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Surasate Co., Litd. Thailand Directorship
Dhospaak Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Sea Food Bear Garden Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Sangsom Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Theparunothai Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
Luckchai Liquor Trading Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship
S P M Foods & Beverages Co., Lid. Thailand Directorship
Fuengfuanant Co., Ltd. Thailand Directorship

*T'ransactions with the related parties were presented as related party transactions and balances until

September 2010.
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Name of entities Country of  Nature of relationships
incor por ation
/nationality
InterBev Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Indirect subsidiary of
parent company
Managing director (Mr.Tan Passakornnatee)* Thailand Shareholder and director

(Has resigned from the position of director and
president on September 2010)

* Transactions with the related partics were presented as related party transactions and balances until
September 2010.

The pricing policies for particular types of transactions are explained further below:

Transactions Pricing policies
Purchase and sale of goods Cost plus margin / contractually agreed price
Purchase and sale of property, plant and Net book value / mutually agreed price
equipment
Rental income and expenses Contractually agreed price
Consultancy income Contractually agreed price
Interest income and expenses Interest rate close to interest of financial institution
Other income and expenses Mutually agreed price

Significant transactions for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 with related parties were as

follows:
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Parent
Sales of goods 889 239 881 239
Subsidiaries
Sales of goods - - 5,110 2.969
Sales of property - - - 47
Interest income - - 802 1,047
Consultancy income - - 4,320 4,320
Other income - - 883 1,085
Purchase of goods - - 445,848 206,294
Purchase of property - - 6,423 5,506
Rental expense - - 3,731 3,755
Other expense - - 1,858 981
Interest expense - - 627 -
Other related parties
Sales of goods 4,255,257 3,255,291 1.061.910 186.284
Sales of property 16,000 - - -
Purchase of goods 33.859 46,421 1,067 956
Purchase of property 2,983 988 280 Q8
Rental expense 23,178 16,525 21,943 15,289
Promotion expenses 01,691 95,414 16,266 6.837
Other expense 33,521 24,672 21,505 11,877
Directors’ remuneration 42,130 34,620 42,130 34,620
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Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Directors’ remuneration

At the annual general meeting of the sharcholders of the Company held on 20 April 2010, the
sharcholders approved the directors” remuneration for the year 2010 and remuneration for former
directors in the amount not exceeding Baht 10 million and Baht 37.6 million, respectively.

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 24 April 2009, the
shareholders approved the directors” remuneration for the year 2009 and remuneration for former

directors in the amount not exceeding Baht 10 million and Baht 30 million, respectively.

Balances as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 with related parties were as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Trade accounts receivable from (in thousand Baht)
related parties
Parent
Thai Beverage Public Company Limited 278 - 269 -
Subsidiaries
Oishi Trading Co., Ltd. - - 52 15
Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd. - - 212 143
Other related parties
Pomthip Co., Ltd. 195,296 224,259 39,372 49,915
Pomkit Co., Ltd. 15,057 13,566 38 66
Pomburapa Co., Ltd. 14,763 12,181 902 85
Pomklung Co., Ltd. 12,640 7,559 826 94
Pomchok Co., Ltd. 15,752 13,704 751 56
Pomcharoen Co., Ltd. 16,291 11,516 - 50
Pompalang Co., Ltd. 21,904 18,968 845 103
Pomnakorn Co., Ttd. 9,726 5,867 451 100
0.G.T. Co., Ltd.* - 95,866 - 271
Other 56 40 56 40
Total 301,763 403,526 43,774 50,944
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Short-term loans to and amounts (in thousand Baht)
due from related parties
Comprising:
Amounts due from related parties - - 967 5,301
Short-term loans to a related party - - - -
Total - - 967 5,301
Amounts due from related parties
Subsidiaries
Oishi Trading Co., Ltd. - - 889 5,258
Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd. - - 78 43
Total - - 967 5,301
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the vears ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Movements during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 of short-term loans to a related party
were as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
At 1 January - - - -
Increase - - 1,028,000 470,000
Decrease - - (1,028,000) (470,000)

At 31 December - - - -

Interest rate of short-term loans to a related party ranges from 0.75% to 1.75% per annum (2009: 1%

per annum).
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Duvidend receivable
Oishi Trading Co., Ltd. - - 818,998 671.998
Total - - 818,998 671,998
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Amounts due from related parties (in thousand Baht)
- long term
Other related parties
Kluey Kluey Co., Ltd.* - 4,180 - 4,180
TCCPD 11 Co., Ltd. 3.024 3.024 3,024 3.024
Thippatana Arcade Co., Ltd. 1,301 1,802 1,336 1,356
Sea Food Bear Garden Co., Ltd. 1,041 1,041 1,041 1,041
Surasate Co., Ltd. 780 769 780 769
Total 6,646 10,816 6,201 10,370
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Trade accounts payable to (in thousand Baht)
related parties
Subsidiaries
Oishi Trading Co., Ltd. - - 22,908 37.687
Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd. - - 354 19
Other related parties
Pan International (Thailand) Ce., Ltd. 9,710 9,449 - -
Berli Jucker Public Co., Ltd. 2,962 4,792 - -
Others 276 324 232 275
Total 12,948 14,565 23,494 37,981
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Short-term loans from and (in thousand Bahi)
arnounts due to related parties
Comprising:
Amounts due to related parties 51,227 79,791 11,059 9,291
Short-term loans from related party - - - -
Total 51,227 79,791 11,059 9,291
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Amounts due to related parties (in thousand Baht)
Subsidiary
Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd. - - 125 264
Other related parties
Pomthip Co., Ltd. 48.615 71,672 8.659 7,128
Dhospaak Co., Ltd. - 1,253 - -
TCCPD 11 Co., Ltd. 1.008 - 1,008 -
Thai Beverage Marketing Co., Ltd. 433 400 433 400
Surasate Co., Ltd. 341 360 341 360
Thippatana Arcade Co., Ltd. 313 549 261 497
Others 517 5,557 232 642
Total 51,227 79,791 11,059 9,291
Movements during the year ended 31 December 2010 of short-term loans from a related party was as
follows:
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
{in thousand Bahi)
At 1 January - - - -
Increase - - 229,000 -
Decrease - - (229,000) -
At 31 December - - - -

Interest rate of short-term loans from a related party ranges from 0.75% to 1.75% per annum
(2009: Nil).
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Conunitments with related parties
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Non-cancellable operating lease
commitments
Within one year 7,754 17,259 9,850 20,303
After one year but within five years 5,093 10,626 15,318 21,018
After five years - 4,378 16,434 23,692
Total 12,847 32,263 41,602 65,613

Significant agreements under non-cancellable operating lease commitments
Property leases agreement

On 21 December 2009, the Company entered into two lease building agreements at Bangrak district
with a related company. The agreements are for 3 years from 23 December 2009 to 22 December 2012
with monthly rental fee of Baht 660,500 and Baht 81,225,

On 1 September 2009, the Company entered into a lease building agrecment at Bangsue district with
a related company. The agreement is for 3 years from 1 September 2009 to 31 August 2012 with
monthly rental fee of Baht 59,490.

On 1 August 2009, the Company entered into a lcase building agreement at Pathumwan district with
a related company. The agreement is for 3 years from 1 August 2009 to 31 July 2012 with monthly
rental fee of Baht 112.870.

On 1 April 2009, the Company entered into a partial arca lease agreement of a project at Lopburi
province with a related company. The agreement is for 1 year from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010.
Subsequently on 1 April 2010, the agreement was renewed for 1 year from 1 April 2010 to 31 March
2011. The Company agreed to pay vearly rental fee based on percentage of revenue under the
conditions as stipulated in the agreement.™

On 16 January 2009, the Company entered into a lease building agreement at Chiang Mai province
with a related company. The agreement is for 3 years from 16 January 2009 to 15 January 2012 with
monthly rental fee of Baht 45,060,

On 17 January 2008, the Company entered inte lease agreements for land and building, infrastructure,
equipment and furniture at Soi Thonglor with a related company. The agreements are for 3 years from
27 December 2007 to 26 December 2010 with rental fee rate as follows:

- Monthly rental fee ranging from Baht 734,000 to Baht 908,000 for land and building.
- Monthly rental fee of Baht 100,000 for infrastructure, equipment and furniture.

On 9 November 2007, the Company entered into a partial arca lease agreement of a project at Lopburi
province with a related company. The agreement is for 3 years from 9 November 2007 to-8 November

2010 with monthly rental fee ranging from Baht 40,000 to Baht 60,000.*

* Transactions with the related parties were presented as related party transactions and balances until
September 2010.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

The Company and Qishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into four cars lease agreements with a
related company. The cach agreement is for 5 years, duc within May 2013 and August 2015 with
monthly rental fee ranging from Baht 19,200 to Baht 30,000. Subsequently on 27 April 2010, a lease
agreement was canceled.

On 1 December 2006, the Company entered into a lease building agreement at Chenburi province with
a related party. The agreement is for 3 years from 1 December 2006 to 30 November 2009 with
monthly rental fee of Baht 71,050. Subsequently on 29 January 2010, the Company entered into a new
agreement from 1 February 2010 to 31 Januvary 2011 with monthly rental fee of Baht 71,050.%

On 1 August 2006, Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into an arca lease agreement of
building at Nonthaburi province with a related company. The agreement is for 3 years from 1 August
2006 to 31 July 2009. Subsequently on 1 August 2009, the agreement was renewed for 3 years from
1 August 2009 to 31 July 2012 with monthly rental fee of Baht 59,232 and Baht 59,233, respectively.

* Transactions with the related partics were presented as related party transactions and balances until
September 2010.

Subledase memorandims

The Company entered into sublease memorandums with Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, as
follows:

- Area of two department stores for which the subsidiary owns leasehold rights, with monthly lease
fee of Baht 240,000,

- Arca of another department store, with monthly lease fec of Baht 72,954.

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009

(in thousand Baht)

Other commitments
Service agreements 8,801 8,992 7,741 7,096
Purchase orders for goods

and supplies - 6,030 - -
Total 8,801 15,022 7,741 7,096

Other agreements
Distributing goods agreements
On 3 October 2008, the Company and Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into appointment

agreements with related companies that have authority and responsibility to act as a distributor for
ready-to-drink products. The agreements are for 5 years from 3 October 2008 to 2 October 2013,
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Cash on hand 14,355 10,619 13,176 9,552
Cash at banks - current accounts 956 520 518 204
Cash at banks - savings accounts 164,092 547,251 55,975 297.408
Highly liquid short-term investments 130,000 - -
Total 309,403 558,390 69,669 307,164

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 were
denominated entircly in Thai Baht.

6 Trade accounts receivable

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Related parties 4 301,763 403,526 43,774 50,944
Other parties 304,719 186,393 18,933 14,897
Total 606,482 589,919 62,727 65,841

Aging analyses for trade accounts receivable were as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009

{in thowusand Baht)
Related parties

Within credit terms 301,763 375,007 43,774 50,933
Overdue:

Less than 3 months - 28.519 - 11
Total 301,763 403,326 43,774 50,944
Other parties
Within credit terms 293,484 185,688 18,832 14,439
Overdue:

Less than 3 months 5,014 625 121 404

3 - 6 months 6,165 70 - 54

6 - 12 months 56 10 - -
Total 304,719 186,393 18,953 14,897
Grand total 606,482 589,919 62,727 65,841

The normal credit term granted by the Group ranges from 30 days to 60 days.
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Trade accounts receivable of the Group as at 31 December 2010 were denominated in Thai Baht
(2009: a balance in United States Dollars amounting to Baht 1.01 million and remaining amounts
were denominated in Thai Baht). Trade accounts reccivable of the Company as at 31 December 2010
and 2009 were denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

Inventories
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Finished goods 325,434 64,927 20,308 5357
Raw materials 154,295 133,083 24,151 19,084
Production supplies 23,273 18,756 4,147 3,705
503,002 216,766 48,6006 28,546
Less allowance for
deteriorated inventories (7,223) (11,877) (2,570) (886)
Net 495,779 204,889 46,036 27,660

The cost of inventorics which is recognised as an expense and included in ‘cost of sale of goods® for
the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to Baht 6,310 million (2009: Baht 4, 708 million) for the
consolidated and Baht 2,743 million (2009 Baht 1,648 million) for the separate financial statements.

Other current assets

Consolidated Separate
financial statcments financial statcmcents
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)

Refundable import duty 18,747 841 - -
Undue vat 12,170 12,789 4,048 6,558
Refundable value added tax 9,338 - - -
Other 46,702 36,156 19,071 11,859
Total 86,957 49,786 23,719 18,417

Investments in subsidiaries

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)

At 1 January - - 578,000 578,000
Acquisitions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
At 31 December - - 578,000 578,000
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

10  Other long-term investments

Other long-term investments as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are investments in government bonds

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Interest rate 2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 2009
(% per annum) (in thousand Baht)

Redemption

2013 4.25 4.25 2,000 2,000 - -

2014 5.90 5.90 6,500 6,500 - -

2016 4.125 - 3,660 - - -
Total 12,160 8,500 - -

Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, has pledged the bonds as collateral for electricity and natural
gas consumption in whole amount.

Other long-term investments of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 were denominated
entirely in Thai Baht.

25



OISHI ©

L
W

G-R-O-U-P

PUBLIC CONANY LTI

9¢

(MO 9C COE IYDE (F00C) UOTIUL 7T H0f JYeg 01 PAJUnouIe o[(7 I2quiada(] [¢ 18 SB asn Ul [[us st ey Justudmbs pue juepd “Aytadoid pajetoardsp Ay s, dnorn s§jJo junoure ssolg 2],

6L0°996°C 9£6°95T°T 006 650°62 pST68 9Z8°THF £LT°56T LISTIT LPL'PLE Tre's 976°01¢
B09°CE9°T £96°86 TLLY 806°5T 11659 £TEHS 00£°61T SSLLET $66°66% T09°¢ 8EL6ST
FOS'8HET TOE6L T 900°5T $89°cS 168°85S STTOST 8S8°LOT SI6'sed 0STF 8ET°6ST
L8ELOOT = 6+6'T PEFO8 £8F9ZT ££8°916 0£9°8T $ESTST L¥SE -
{6Lt°61T) g (001'8) (625} (0os'01) (sL7'6L) (szFeD) £ 5 5
806°LTE ” LT 9692 L9894 £80°981 18L°TE S8T'LY £85°97 099 x
$ST'6LET = z08'6 L9TGL 9THIIT STO0TS 9£.°¢6 0,861 SET'STI L88°T =
{981°¢cE) - (¥v8) (0657) {0£6'D) (£9t'8) (1LL°6) (s55°FD) {67) - -
8LH9TE = $ET'T £L5°0T 82912 6£6'6LT 999°¢E 915'6E 77292 619 :
988°¢60°T = T8 P8TLY SIL€6 £SE'RE9 TPR19 GLEFTT 79686 8€TT J
999°¢L5°F 9£6'35Z°T 6+8°¢ £6+°601 LELSTT 659°85¢°T 9bbLER L¥H'SPE AT 8889 976°01€
£05°6ET = (g99°01) (s66°¢) {LLon) (£L¥'88) {651°8) {oggo1) e = 2
= {c76°c81) 2 50T 88F01 1L8°TF 00126 TLELE - - -
£01°869°T 968 CVET - 81271 6650k LI6DL 69101 186°€ SET°T ook 88L°T6T
99.L°PT0'S £96°86 PISPT SLT66 LTEILT SPEPEL'T 980°CTE STYLET (11 R 88F°0 SET6ST
(£8€°TH) E (+¥8) (zeo'e) (95+°e) (set'6) (o11'8) {c15°91) (c86) = =
= {ezr'zT2) # $86°T PETTT 090701 089°+9 £68°0€ 697 i *
65LTIY 98.°T£7 0L €6'6 9181 6LTVD 9T¥ ik 805°0F 686'C - -
066°PH9°T TOE'6L [49:4 21 067°06 £0F6FT PRFLLTT 950°T1T LELTET LLBTTE 8819 SET65T
(Rpg pupsnoys ul)
LAA TOTJR[[BISUT PUB ST A S[IsuURIN SANYXI] pue Funnjpoenuew SUSAS UOTIBI0dA(] JuauA0Iduwt JuauaAcdun pueT
TOTJSNISUOD JURITRISS Y AInying 10] ABUWysR W [ewajuy pue Supjing pue
IPUN $PSEY quawidinba 20130y pue s[ooT,

STUIMIANEYS BIOUBUY PRIEPIIOSUO))

0T0T P QU £ I¥
010z Srenue |

PUE G007 RqUBII( [TV

6007 Arenueg | 1y

| yoag 1N

OTOT B qURINITE IV

spesodsiq

Jeak oY) 10T 95 uoreaarda(y
0107 Amenuep |

PUE QT 1O qUBINT £V

spesodsi(]

Jeak a3 Jog aSmyd uoneraardacy

6007 Amnuef [ 1y

Hogmo24da(F

OT0T P qURIAQ 1€ 1V
spesodsiq
sRJSURLT,
EUOTHPPY

0102 Lrenwep |
PUE 60T 10 qUBIJ [£IV
spesodsi(]
sIRJSURLT,
SUOIRPPY
6007 Amnuer [ 1y
507)

puidmbs pue jued ‘Aradoag [

6007 PUR OTOT I2qUINN(] [€ PIPUD SILIL ) 10,
SHUIUII LS [CIDULUL ) 0) SNON

SILIBIPISNS $31 pue poyrury Auedwo) s1gng dnoan 1ys1o



Le

(L7 @0u 00%) (aqvorpdde jou go0¢) wnuae
Jod 04767 01 940¢ T Jo o1er uonezipdes e yum (i 407/ UOIIU 86+ Tey 01 pojunowe s3oafoxd pres oy Jo uonisinbae oy 03 Sunerar s3s00 Sulmorioq pasifepde)

(Mo ([ € 3O (6007) VO €1 H1Z]T ed Sul[e1o) (£¢ 210U ul paqriosap se) 3aaloid suryoews Suideyoed [HM
pue j0ofoad wononpoud smoq A4 pue 28esasq Sul|[L]-ondssy-plo) pesudwoo dnolry oy Jo UOE[[EISUL PUE UOIIONASUDD JOpUn §1assE ()07 B2quioa(] [ 18 SV

HOIIRIIRISUT PUD UOHONAISHOD J2PUN SJaSST
"$JUSWNRS [RTOURUI] o) 0 G 210U UI paquivsap se a3pa[d sanesou opun pased usoq aaey juswdinbs pue juerd Ly1odoid s dnoiny ayg,

6007 PUE (LT J12qUIIII( 1€ PIPUD SIIK Y 10|
SJUIUIIIL)S [RIDUBULY ) 0} SIJON

SIIBIPISqNS §1 pue payury Auedwio) srqng dnoin 1ysiQ




8¢

‘SJUSLIRYR]S [RISUBLT 51 0} C[ 20U UT paquosap se 28pad aanesau sepun paor(d usaq saey uawdmbe pue juerd Apredord s Aueduwosy auf,

(worjpu 09 ¢8I YR g (00 UOT[[IUL O£ 01T IrY 0} PAUNQUIR ()| 07 2qUIsde(] € Je s asn Ul [[Us sem Jey) jusuadmba pue qued “Apedoid pajerosidap Ajmy s Aueduroyy st Jo junoure ssois sy,

S9rT8S F6Z'T €28 $55°9¢ FIL'99 SEP'SST SSEFLI 95L7LST 0107 BYURINI I§ 1Y
0LTILE Tee's £85 0LTIT FZ0°'0S 1£8°C21 SSEOFI T8L0ET 0107 ATenuey [ pue 6007 BYULBIE IV
SILEHE (T3 o8 LLL'GT 6L8°9% ZET'6L $S9°T01 £00°96 6007 ATemrer 1 ¥
amm | YOO FIN
PLEFIS - LL6 SSETL OFSLL 769°6TT 0£6°08 PLTEST 0107 DU TE IV
{(6LFEE) - - (PH') (s£L°¢) (£zs'9) {Fre'r) {sTr'eD) sesodsi(T
¥86°97T : 09T $E9°L £PTLT or9‘or PLTLE TEOFY Tea4 a1 10T a5 nonEryaIdag

698'00F = LTL FoLiLO TPI'99 6156 000°8F L99°TTT 0107 Snnirer
PUE G)0T 2 qUBII TE 1V
(1887T) - (11} (62¢°T) (c£6°T) (098°¢) {¥£97) (880°¢T) sesodsir
POTROT - 09T 910°6 $66°71 00T°LT 9T6°€T LLS'PE Teaf ayy oy agreya nogeroardac
Z55°81€ = 86¥ LHOTS £80°5S 6EEPL 80L°92 8:8°001 6007 Amnuer 1 1y
vOINIdLdIF
6£8°960°T P6TT 0051 01586 09T FFT LTTS8T 8I£SST 0£0°TTE 0107 PYULDIT TE TV
(TIFTr) E = {5686 (1L¥°9) {092} {6+1°8) {ogc'91) spesodsic
& (8c6°91T) - $60°Z 2501 66+0F S0S'9E TLELE SIFSUBIL,
117497 0£6°ZTT . 9LETT £80°¥2 8LEEY $05°8E OPL'9E STOHIPPY

6£0°7.8 7T8s 0051 $£6'88 99T'91T 0THSIT 85H°881 6PPEST 010 Arenurer
PUE 60T 2 qUBINI T£ 1V
{651°25) E [§17] {059°T7) (612°7) (s0¥'9) (£2€°9) (ezevI) sesodsi(
i {1oc's01) = ¥86°1 AN 090°1€ LESULT $68°0€ SIJSUBI],
876'TYT L6566 = 9.L'8 5811 7870F 888°9¢ 96T°0F SUOHIPPY
0L27°799 9TF'6 TPE'T ¥2808 196°16 ILVEST 99821 182°961 6007 Amnuef T 1%
03

{1ypg puvsrioy] ui)
[e30]. UDIR[[RIST pUB SIPIPA spsuan Sampxy pue SuLimjoe e swagsds UOIJRI023(]
UOTJONISU0D JuRINR)EY amrwng JoJ AIuriprun [emguy
Japun spssy “uatdinba 20130 puB s[o0],

sIwuRgE)s [ERueuy aemrdoy

6007 PUE (10T TQUINI( [ PIPUD SILIL 1) I0]
SJUITIIB)S [RIDULUL 1) 0) SIJON

SOLIBIPISqNS §31 pue pyiwl| Aueduro)) s1qng dnoasy 1gsiQ



OISHI ©

SROUE L

Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

12

Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 January 2009

Additions

At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2010

Amortisation

At 1 January 2009

Amortisation charge for the year

At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
Amortisation charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 December 2010

Net book value

At 1 January 2009

At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
At 31 December 2010

Cost

At 1 January 2009

Additions

At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2010

Amortisation

At 1 January 2009

Amortisation charge for the year

At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
Amortisation charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 December 2010

Net book value
At 1 January 2009

At 31: December 2009 and 1 January 2010
At 31 December 2010

Consolidated financial statements
Software Operation

licences rights Total
(in thousand Baht)
32,704 6,646 39,350
6,963 11,171 18,134
39,667 17,817 57,484
7,234 351 7,585
(6) - (6)
46,895 18,168 65,063
7,197 386 7,583
3,466 1,215 4681
10,663 1,601 12,264
4,285 1,808 6,093
(2) = (2)
14,946 3,409 18,355
25,507 6,260 31,767
29,004 16,216 45,220
31,949 14,759 46,708

Separate financial statements
Software Operation

licences rights Total
(in thousand Baht)
13,776 6,646 20,422
2,695 11,171 13,866
16,471 17,817 34,288
4,417 351 4,768
(6) - (6)
20,882 18,168 39,050
3,022 386 3,408
1,415 1,215 2,030
4,437 1,601 6,038
1,841 1,808 3,649
(2) = 2)
6,276 3,409 9,685
10,754 6,260 17,014
12,034 16,216 28,250
14,606 14,759 29,365

29



Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

13

14

Operation rights

QISHI

GROUE

Operation rights comprise the initial license fee and license fee for operating a chain of Japanese

restaurants. Further details are disclosed in note 33.

Leasehold rights

Cost
At 1 January
At 31 December

Amortisation

At 1 January

Amortisation charge for the year
At 31 December

Net book value
At 1 January
At 31 December

Leasehold rights

The Company

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
{in thousand Baht)

156,473 156,473 56,885 56,885
156,473 156,473 56,885 56,885
54,800 45,121 11,668 9,203
9,677 9,679 2,465 2,465
64,477 54,800 14,133 11,668
101,673 111,352 45,217 47,682
91,996 101,673 42,752 45,217

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Company had leasehold rights in 2 department stores, for the
operation of restaurants, which are amortised over the period of agreements for approximately 21-24

years.

Subsidiary

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, had leaschold rights in 5
department stores, for the operation of restaurants, which are amortised over the period of agreements

for approximately 7-20 years.

Other non-current assets

Deposit - rental

Advance payment - asscts
Deposit - utilities

Other

Total

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
{in thousand Baht)
102,382 84,802 90,556 77,613
44,504 176,572 - -
4,611 4,925 4,527 4,126
3,871 697 1,499 1,046
155,368 266,996 96,582 82,785
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QOishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

15 Interest-bearing liabilities

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009

{in thousand Baht)

Non-current
Long-term loan from

a financial institution

Unsecured 600,000 - - -
Total 600,000 - = -

In November 2010, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, enter into a long-term loan agreement with a
financial institution in the amount of Baht 600 million which is to be repaid monthly in 6 installments,
Baht 100 million each, commencing in May 2012. Interest is payable monthly at rate of 2.92% per
annum. The loan agreement containg certain covenants and restrictions, including maintenance of
certain financial ratios.

The Group has obtained credit facilities from commercial banks consisting of bank overdrafts, short-
term loans, letters of guarantee, letters of credit, forward contracts and other. Under the memorandums
of loan agreements made with the certain commercial banks, the Group has pledged that a substantial
portion of the Group’s property, plant and equipment will not be transferred, mortgaged, pledged,
guaranteed or treated to cause any encumbrance or preferential right to those assets as long as the
Group has not repaid its loans and/or is still being held responsible to the bank unless a written
permission from the bank is obtained.

As at 31 December 2010 the Group had unutilized credit facilitics amounting to Baht 2,425.06 million
and USD 40.03 million (2009: Baht 2,133.76 million and USD 24.10 million).

The interest-bearing liability of the Group as at 31 December 2010 was denominated entirely in Thai
Baht.

16 Trade accounts payable

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Note 2010 2009 2010 2000
{in thousand Baht)
Related parties 4 12,948 14,565 23,494 37,981
Other parties 782,594 614,251 241,797 177,119
Total 795,542 028,816 265,291 215,100

Trade accounts payable of the Group as at 31 December 2010 was denominated entirely in Thai Baht,
(2009: a balance in United States Dollars amounting to Baht 0.32 million and remaining amount was
denominated in Thai Baht). Trade accounts payable of the Company as at 31 December 2010 and
2009 were denominated entirely in Thai Baht.
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009
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18

19

Accrued expenses

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Marketing expenses 89,640 127.868 36,889 78.165
Accrued personnel expenses 60,811 55,449 52,731 48,000
Others 72,870 51,989 21,454 16,884
Total 223,321 235,306 111,074 143,055
Other current liabilities
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Revenue from the advance
sale of coupons 18,676 18,008 18,676 18,098
Withholding tax payable 13,147 9,124 6,269 4,935
Value added tax 6,239 14,308 5,639 6,107
Retention 1,254 15,805 1,254 15,581
Others 32,320 17.276 16,359 15,505
Total 71,636 74,611 48,197 60,226
Share capital
Par value 2010 2009
per share Number Baht Number Baht
(in Baht) (thousand shares / thousand Baht)
Authorised
At 1 January
- ordinary shares 2 187,500 375,000 187,500 375,000
At 31 December
- ordinary shares 2 187,500 375,000 187,500 375,000
Issued and paid-up
At 1 January
- ordinary shares 2 187,500 375,000 187,500 375,000
At 31 December
- ordinary shares 2 187,500 375,000 187,500 375,000
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QOishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

20

21

Additional paid-in capital and legal reserves

Share premium

Section 51 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires companies to set aside share subseription
monies received in excess of the par value of the shares issued to a reserve account (“share
premium’). Share premium is not available for dividend distribution.

Legal reserve

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 Section 116 requires that a company shall allocate
not less than 3% of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve
account (“legal reserve™), until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the registered
authorised capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Sesment information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business segments based on the Group’s
management and intemal reporting structure.

Segment results, assets and liabilitics include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Food Japanese restaurants business, ramen and bakery

Beverage Production and distribution of green tea and fruit juice flavour and
distribution of coffee

Geographic segments

The Group does not present information on geographic segments as the management considers that
export sales are insignificant.
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Qishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Business segments results

Segment foods Segment beverage Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in million Baht)

Revenue from sale of goods

- External sales 4,075 3,298 856 575 4,931 3,873

- Inter company sales 1 - 4,255 3,255 4,256 3,255
Other income 17 19 16 10 33 29
Total income 4,093 3,317 5,127 3,840 9,220 7,157
Cost of sale of goods 2,616 2,054 3,694 2,654 6,310 4,708
Selling and administrative

cxpenses 1,181 1,027 594 597 1,775 1,624
Directors” remuneration 34 33 44 38 78 71
Total expenses 3,831 3,114 4,332 3,289 8,163 6,403
Profit before income tax

expense 262 203 795 551 1,057 754
Tax expense (26) (3) (22) - (48) 3
Profit for the vear 236 200 773 551 1,009 751

Business segments financial position

Segment foods Segment beverage Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
{ in million Baht)

Inventories 103 89 393 116 496 205
Property, plant and

equipment 763 642 2,203 994 2,966 1,636
Other assets 554 682 762 949 1,316 1,631
Total assets 1,420 1,413 3,358 2,039 4,778 3,472
Trade accounts payable 353 292 443 337 796 629
Accrued expenses 141 145 82 90 223 235
Long-term loan from

a financial institution - - 600 - 600 -
Other liabilities 169 100 313 173 482 273
Total liabilities 663 537 1,438 600 2,101 1,137
Capital expenditure 313 284 1.393 147 1,700 431
Depreciation and

amortisation 187 155 176 176 363 331
Gain on disposal of assets 1 - 10 - 11 -
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Oishi Group Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

22  Other income

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Interest income 2,772 6,779 1,724 4,664
Revenue from sale of by-product 3,840 2,792 1,184 551
Subsidize income 2,270 3,539 2,270 3,539
Rental income 2,288 1,891 - -
Net gain on foreign exchange - 187 - 48
(Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 10,192 - 61 60
Others 12,008 13,723 15,162 14,410
Total 33,370 28,911 20,401 23,272
23  Selling expenses
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Promotion expenses 61,691 95.414 16,266 6,837
Rental expense 273,156 228,359 249,637 205,185
Advertising expenses 512522 506,552 203,015 166,110
Total 847,369 830,325 468,918 378,132
24 Administrative expenses
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2009 2008
(in thousand Baht)
Personnel 415,245 378,478 365,756 329,799
Office 143,147 111,113 132,189 99,959
Depreciation and amortisation 128,509 106,616 112.457 86,199
Others 217,421 197,620 126,462 109,404
Total 904,322 793,827 736,864 625,421
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Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

25

26

Employee benefit expenses

Management
Salaries
Remuneration

Others

Other employees

Wages and salaries

Contribution to defined
benefit plans

Others

Total

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
34,782 31421 34,782 31,421
37,600 30,000 37,600 30,000
5,433 9,607 5,433 9,607
77,815 71,028 77,815 71,028
585,900 547,568 397,506 338,942
6,716 4,558 4,318 2,915
221,637 134,309 91,730 79.884
814,253 686,435 493,554 421,741
892,068 757,463 571,369 492,769

The defined contribution plans comprise provident funds established by the Group for its employees.
Membership to the funds is on a voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly by the employees at
rates ranging from 2% to 5% of their basic salaries and by the Group at rates ranging form 2% to 5%
of the employees’™ basic salaries. The provident funds are registered with the Ministry of Finance as
juristic entities and are managed by a licensed Fund Manager.

Expenses by nature

The statements of income include an analysis of expenses by function. Expenses by nature disclosed

in accordance with the requirements of various TFRS were as follows:

Change in inventories of
finished goods

Raw materials and consumables
used

Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of leasehold rights

Advertising and promotion
expenses

Rental expense

Loss on exchange

Others

Total expenses

Note
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Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
(260,507) 7,908 (14,551) (508)
5,407,362 3,737.911 2,538,722 1,490,558
892,068 757,463 571,369 492,769
347,908 316,458 146,984 108,204
6,003 4,681 3,649 2,630
9,677 9,679 2,465 2,465
574,213 601,966 219,281 172,947
293,657 232,618 259,306 211,725
23,703 - - -
869,073 734,307 298.962 241,554
8,163,247 6,402,991 4,026,187 2,722,344
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27 Finance costs

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thovsand Baht)
Interest expense
Subsidiary 4 - - 627 -
Bank loans 4982 = g -
4,982 - 627 -
Assets under construction 11 (4,982) - - -
Net - - 627 -
28 Income tax expense
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
{in thousand Baht)
Current tax expense 47,355 2,560 38,302 -

Consolidated financial statemenis

The current tax expense in the consolidated statements of income is less than the amount determined

by applying the Thai corporation tax rate to accounting profit for the year principally because:

(a) a significant portion of the Group’s profit was derived from promoted activities which are not

subject to tax for the year 2010 amounting to Baht 719 million (2009: Baht 693 million).

(b) unutilised tax losses brought forward from the previous year have been utilised during the year to
set-off against the current year’s tax charge amounting to Baht 137 million (2009: Baht 51

million).

Separate financial statements

The current tax expense in the separate statements of income is less than the amount determined by

applying the Thai corporation tax rate to accounting profit for the year principally because:

(a) the Company has dividends income which are not subject to tax for the year 2010 amounting to

Baht 467 million (2009: Baht 464 million).

(b) the Company has capital expenditures which are subject to tax deduction amounting to Baht 47

million (2009: Baht 46 million).

(c) unutilised tax losses brought forward from the previous year have been utilised during the year to

set-off against the year 2010 charge amounting to Baht 102 million.
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Income tax reduction
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Royal Decree No. 387 B.E. 2544 dated 5 September 2001 grants companies listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand a reduction in the corporate income tax rate from 30% to 25% for taxable profit
not exceeding Baht 300 million for the five consecutive accounting periods beginning on or after
enactment.

The Company had used the reduced tax rate as above until 31 December 2009.

The subsidiaries have calculated income tax on their taxable profit for the years ended 31 December
2010 and 2009 at the 30% corporate income tax rate.

Promotional privileges

By virtue of the provisions of the Industrial Investment Promotion Act of B.E. 2520, Oishi Trading
Co., 1td., a subsidiary, has been granted privileges by the Board of Investment. The privileges granted
include:

Promotional certificate no.

Date

Promotional privileges

(@

®

(©

exemption from import
duties on machinery used for
production which has been
granted privileges by the
Board of Investment
exemption from corporate
income tax on net profit from
the business operations under
the said promotional
privileges for 8 years from
the date that income 1s first
derived from such
operations. In case of loss
during the tax exemption, it
could be deducted from the
net profit after the exemption
period not exceeding five
years from the date of
expiration

exemption from the inclusion
of dividend income derived
under the promotional
privileges for computation of
corporate income tax

1475(2)/2546

3 September 2003

import within
3 March 2006

the first date of
derived income
18 Oc¢tober 2003

8 years

1223(4)/2549
2 March 2006

import within
2 September 2008

the first date of
derived income
28 September 2006

8 years

1214(2)/2553
25 February 2010

import within
25 August 2012

Not vet
operation

8 years

1954(2)/2553

7 September 2010

import within
7 March 2013

Not yet
operation

8 years

As a promoted company, the subsidiary must comply with certain terms and conditions prescribed in
the promotional certificate.
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Summary of revenue from promoted and non-promoted businesses:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
{in thousand Baht)
Promoted business 3,924.017 3,625.835 - -
Non-promoted business 5,262,897 3,502,136 4,295,333 2,704,752
Total Revenue 9,186,914 7,127,971 4,295,333 2,704,752

30 Basic earnings per share

The calculations of basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 were
based on the profit for the years attributable to equity holders of the Company and the number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the years as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009

(in million Baht / in million shares)
Profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company (basic) 1,009.48 751.33 718.54 469.89
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 187.50 187.50 187.50 187.50
Basic earnings per share (in Baht) 5.38 4.01 3.83 2.51

31 Dividends

At the board of directors® meeting of the Company held on 9 August 2010, the directors approved the
appropriation of interim dividend of Baht 1.50 per share, amounting to Baht 281.25 million. The
dividend was paid to sharcholders in September 2010.

At the board of directors” meeting of the Company held on 11 August 2009, the directors approved
the appropriation of interim dividend of Baht 1.14 per share, amounting to Baht 213.75 million. The
dividend was paid to sharcholders in September 2009, subsequently at the annual general meeting of
the sharcholders of the Company held on 20 April 2010, the sharcholders approved the appropriation
of dividends of Baht 3.20 per share, amounting to Baht 600 million. However, since September 2009,
the interim dividend paid was Baht 1.14 per share. The remaining dividend payment is Baht 2.06 per
share, totaling Baht 386.25 million. The remaining dividend was paid to shareholders in May 2010.

At the annual general meeting of the sharcholders of the Company held on 24 April 2009, the

shareholders approved the appropriation of dividend of Baht 3 per share, amounting to Baht 562.5
million. The dividend was paid to shareholders in May 2009.
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Financial instruments
Financial risk management policies

The Group 1s exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates and currency
exchange rates and from non-performance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Group. The Group has a system of controls
in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing
the risks. The management continually monitors the Group’s risk management process to ensure that
an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base s0 as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board monitors the return on
capital, which the Group defines as result from operating activities divided by total sharcholders’
cquity, excluding non-controlling interests and also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the
Group’s operations and its cash flows because loan interest rates are mainly fixed. The Group is
primarily exposed to interest rate risk from its borrowings (Note 15). The Group mitigates this risk by
ensuring that the majority of its borrowings are at fixed mnterest rates. The Group does not expect that
changes in interest rates will materially affect its operations.

Foreign currency risk

Ag at 31 December 2010 the Group had foreign currency risk relating to purchase machinery
agreements in the amount of Euro 16.17 million and Yen 537.19 million (2009: Euro 1.36 million and
Yen 1,399.49 million). The Group primarily utilized forward exchange contracts to hedge the said
agreements (as disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements). The Group is also exposed to foreign
currency risk relating to purchases and sales which are denominated in foreign currencies and at the
reporting date there were no significant concentrations of foreign currencies risk.

Credif risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to
settle its financial and contractual obligations to the Group as and when they fall due.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. At the
reporting date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. However, duc to
the large number of parties comprising the Group’s customer base, Management does not anticipate
material losses from its debt collection.
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Liguidity risk

The Group monitors its hquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The fair value is the amount for which an
asset could be exchanged, or a Lability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in
determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

The fair value of trade and other receivables and loans to and amounts due from related parties are
taken to approximate the carrying value.

The fair value of other long-term mvestments is taken to approximate the carrying value, investment
in government bonds interest rate are fixed.

The fair value of trade and other payables, loans from and amounts due to related parties and other
liabilities are taken to approximate the carrying value.

The fair value of loan is taken to approximate the carrying value, the borrowing interest rate are
approximate market interest rate.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price, if available. If a
listed market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting the difference between
the contractual forward price and the current forward price at the reporting date for the residual
maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds).

Commitments with non related parties

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousand Baht)
Capital commitments
Contracted but not provided for:
Cold-Aseptic-Filling beverage and
PET bottle production project
- Building and other constructions 50,210 294,508 - -
- Machinery and equipment” 37.917 622,052 - -

88,127 916,560 - -

UHT packaging machine project

- Building and other constructions 253,414 - - -
- Machinery and equipment” 674,660 - - -
928,074 - 5 =
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Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
{in thousand Baht)
Other projects
- Building and other constructions 2,350 6,180 - -
- Machinery and equipment 6,529 2,198 415 844
8,879 8,378 415 844
Total 1,018,551 924,938 415 844

" Under the commitments, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd, a subsidiary, entered into letter of credit contracts
and forward contracts with commercial banks amounting to Baht 708.98 million (2009: Baht 551.24
million) and Baht 729.41 million (2009: Baht 572.79 million), respectively. These forward contracts
classified by currencies were as follow:

Amount in contract Fair value
(Foreign currency) (Baht currency)
2010 2009 2010 2009
(in million) (in thousand Baht)
Currency:
Euro 12.98 1.36 519437 65,010
Yen 541.97 1,399.49 201,346 507,712
Total 720,783 572,722

Significant agreements under capital commitments
Cold-Aseptic-Filling beverage and PET boitle production project

In 2009, the sharcholders approved the investment for the factory construction and the installation for
Cold-Aseptic-Filling beverage and PET bottling production machines in the amount of Baht 1,430
million under a condition that the project is promoted by the Board of Investment (BOI). The said
project has been operated under Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2010, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd. has entered into the various agreements with local
and forcign companies for the said project approximately totaling Baht 1,277 million (2009: Baht
1,122 million).

UHT packaging machine project

In 2010, the directors approved investment in UHT packaging machine project in the amount of Baht

980 million (excluding the land) under a condition that the project is promoted by the Board of
Investment (BOI). The said project has been operated under Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary.
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As at 31 December 2010, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd. has entered into agreements with a local and a
foreign company for the said project approximately totaling Baht 889 million.

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009

(in thousand Baht)
Non-cancellable operating

lease commitments
Within one year 164,813 115,926 110,736 80,764
Afier one year but within

five years 143,026 112,365 113,004 73,792
After five years 19,460 24,552 9,660 9,952
Total 327,299 252,843 233,400 164,508

Significant agreements under non-cancellable operation lease commitment:
Area lease agreements
The Company entered into arca lease agreements with local companies for restaurant business. The

agreements are for 1 year to 3 years, due within 2011 to 2012. The Company agreed to pay monthly
rental fee based on percentage of sale and conditions as stipulated in the agreements.

Factory building lease agreement
On 15 November 2006, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into a factory building lcase
agreement with a local company for production of food and beverage. The agreement is for a 14 years

and 2 months period (From 1 December 2006 to 31 January 2021) with monthly rental of Baht
200.000.

UHT packing machine lease agreement

On 30 December 2009, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into a UHT packing machine
lease agreement with a local company. The agreement is for a 24 months period (From 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2011), with quarterly rental rate of Baht 3 million.

Forklift agreements

Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into lease agreements, forklifts and other equipments,
with various companies. The agreements are for 1 year to 3 years, due within 2011 to 2013, with the
monthly rental rate as specified in the agreements.

Store lease agreements

Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into store lease agreements with various companies. The

agreements are for 6 month to 1 year, due within 2011, with the monthly rental rate as specified in the
agreements.
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Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
{in thovusand Baht)
Other Commitments
Purchase orders for goods
and supplies 23,071 289,746 - -
Service agreements 249,354 231,155 223,390 196,166
Advertisement contracts 8,880 1,277 27 -
Other 747 - 59 -
Total 282,052 522,178 223,476 196,166

Other agreements
Distributing goods agreement

On 2 November 2003, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into an appointment agreement
with a local company to act as a distributor for green tea products. The agreement is for 3 years from
4 November 2005 to 3 November 2008. On 3 November 2008, the agreement was extended for 3
years from 4 November 2008 to 3 November 2011.

Hot-fill PET bottle trading agreement

On 22 August 2005, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into a hot-fill PET bottle trading
agreement with a local bottle manufacturing company according to the quantity required from the
subsidiary on a monthly basis at the price specified in the agreement. The agreement is for a 15-year
period, commencing 150 days after the agreement date.

Material and packing trading agreements

On 1 February 2007, the Company and Oishi Ramen Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into a material
and package trading agreement with a local company for distribution of products to the Group’s shops
and for materials and packaging management. The Company and its subsidiary agreed to pay the
service charge at the rate specified in the agreement. The said agreement has a 3-year period from 1
April 2007 to 31 March 2010 with a renewal option for another 3 years. Subsequently on 30 April
2010, the Company and the said subsidiary entered into new agreements. The terms of these new
agreements were 2 years and 8 months from 1 May 2010 to 31 December 2012 with the renewal
option for another 3 years.

Transportation agreements

On 1 November 2007, the Company and Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into a
transportation agreement with a local company to transport products from factory to the destination.
Transportation cost is calculated for cach trip at the rate stated in the agreement. The term of the
agreement was 3 years from 1 November 2007 to 31 October 2010. On 1 February 2010 the said
subsidiary entered into a new transportation agrecment due to fee rate change. The term of the new
agreement was 3 years from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012 and may - be extended for
successive periods of 1 year each or terminated if any party does not comply with the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the agreement or not less than 30 days” prior written notice given by any
one party to the other.
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Consultancy fee agreement

The Company paid consultancy fee to a company of Baht 600,000 per month. This fee is included in
other expenses.

License agreements

The Company entered into a license agreement for operating a chain of Japanese restaurants in the
Kingdom of Thailand as the master license for the period 10 years from 20 May 2008. This agreement
shall be automatically renewed for additional terms of 10 years cach, unless there is a written notice
not to rencw this agreement at least 180 days prior to the expiration of the initial term of any renewal
term. The Company committed to pay Initial License Fee, License Fee and Royalty Fee as stipulated
in the agreement.

On 29 June 2009, the Company entered into a license agreement for operating another chain of
Japanese restaurants in the Kingdom of Thailand as the master license with another forcign company,
for the period of 10 vears from 29 June 2009. This agreement shall be automatically renewed for
additional terms of 10 years each, unless there 1s a written notice not to renew this agreement at least
180 days prior to the expiration of the initial term or of any renewal term. Under the agreement the
Company committed to pay Initial License Fee and Royalty Fee as stipulated in the agreement.

Purchase natural gas agreement

On 30 September 2009, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into a purchase natural gas
agrcement with a local company. The subsidiary agrced to pay disburscments and comply with
conditions in the agreement. The agreement is for a 7-year period from 21 December 2009 to 30
November 2016 with renewal if not less than 90 days’ prior written notice 1s given by any one party to
the other as stipulated in the agreement.

Supply agreement

On 1 June 2010, Oishi Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into a supply agreement to purchase
Aseptic preforms and Aseptic Plastic Closures to support its aseptic filling line with a local company,
whereby the subsidiary agreed to buy the raw material at category and price specified in the terms and
conditions of the agreement. The agreement has been effective until 31 August 2011 unless the
counterpartics agree otherwise.

Events after the reporting date
At the board of directors” meecting held on 23 February 2011, the directors agreed to propose
adividend payment for the year of Baht 3.20 per share, totalling Baht 600 million. In September 2010,

the interim dividend paid was Baht 1.50 per share, totalling Baht 281.25 million. The remaining
dividend payment is Baht 1.70 per share, totalling Baht 318.75 million.
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The Group has not adopted the following new and revised TFRS that have been issued as of the
reporting date but are not yet effective. The new and revised TFRS are anticipated to become effective
for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January in the year indicated in the following

table.

TFRS

TAS 1 (revised 2009)
TAS 2 (revised 2009)
TAS 7 (revised 2009)
TAS 8 (revised 2009)
TAS 10 (revised 2009)
TAS 12

TAS 16 (revised 2009)
TAS 17 (revised 2009)

TAS 18 (revised 2009)
TAS 19

TAS 23 (revised 2009)
TAS 24 (revised 2009)
TAS 27 (revised 2009)
TAS 33 (revised 2009)
TAS 34 (revised 2009)
TAS 36 (revised 2009)

TAS 37 (revised 2009)

TAS 38 (revised 2009)

Topic
Presentation of Financial Statements
Inventories
Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

Events after the Reporting Period

Income tax
Property, Plant and Equipment
Leascs

Revenue
Employee Benefits

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Earnings per Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Intangible Assets

Year
effective

2011

2011

2011

2011
2011

2013

2011

2011

2011
2011
2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

Management expects to adopt and apply these new TFRS in accordance with the FAP’s announcement
and has made a preliminary assessment of the potential initial impact on the consolidated and separate
financial statements of those new and revised TFRS that will become effective from 2011 assessed to
have the greatest potential impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. These

standards are as follows:
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TAS 16 (revised 2009} — Property, plant and equipment

The principal changes introduced by the revised TAS 16 and affecting the Group are that (i) costs of
agset dismantlement, removal and restoration have to be included as asset costs and subject to annual
depreciation; (ii) the depreciation charge has to be determined separately for each significant part of an
asset; and (ii1) in determining the depreciable amount, the residual value of an item of property, plant
and equipment has to be measured at the amount estimated receivable currently for the asset if the
agsct were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. Furthermore,
the residual value and useful life of an asset have to be reviewed at least at cach financial year-end.

The revised TAS 16 (revised 2009) permits as a transitional provision that these changes may be
introduced prospectively from the year of introduction. Management intends to adopt this transitional
provision and accordingly the introduction of the revised TAS 16 (revised 2009) from 1 January 2011
has no impact on the financial statements of 2010 or prior years. Management is currently reviewing
the impact on the financial statements of introducing the revised TAS 16 (revised 2009) from 1
January 2011.

TAS 19 — Employee benefits

Prior to the introduction of TAS 19, there was no Thai accounting standard covering employee
benefits and the Group/Company docs not presently account for the costs of post-employment benefits
under defined benefit plans; other long-term employee benefits; and termination benefits until such
costs are incurred. The new TAS 19 includes the requirements to recognise and account for such costs
in the period in which the service is performed. The requirements are complex and require actuarial
assumptions to measure the obligation and expense. Moreover, the obligations are measured on a
discounted basis because they may be settled many years after the employees render the related
service. The transitional provisions of TAS 19 permit the transitional liability to be recognised and
accounted for in one of four different ways:

1. retrospectively

2. immediately in equity (retained carnings) at the transition date

3. immediately in profit or loss at the transition date

4. as an expense on a straight-line basis over up to five years from the transition date

Management has determined that the transitional liability as at 1 January 2011 for post-employment
benefits is Baht 20.30 million for the Group and Baht 14.99 million for the Company. Management intends

to adopt transitional provision 2 to recognise and account for this liability.
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